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          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: My name is Thomas

          3  White, Jr., Chairman of the Economic Development

          4  Committee, and to my right is Council Member Al Vann

          5  who is the Subcommittee Chair on the Community

          6  Development Committee.

          7                 Let me just say that I would welcome

          8  you to this joint hearing with the Select Committee

          9  on Community Development, Chaired by Councilman Al

         10  Vann. This is a hearing on Intro. No. 346, which

         11  seeks to amend the New York City Charter and the

         12  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         13  relation to designating to high-poverty areas within

         14  New York City as community development zones in

         15  order to strategically address poverty through

         16  economic development and human delivery.

         17                 This bill is aimed at addressing the

         18  problem of poverty in our City and seeks to foster

         19  City agency collaborative planning within

         20  high-poverty areas by creating a mayoralty control

         21  governing board and designating these high poverty

         22  areas as community development zones.

         23                 This hearing will review the problem

         24  of poverty in New York City, the challenges faced by

         25  our City in addressing and resolving the poverty
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          2  issues, as well as detailed analysis of the

          3  provisions of this bill.

          4                 Chairman Vann.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes, thank you. And

          6  good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen,

          7  Administration.

          8                 As Chairman White indicated, I chair

          9  the Select Committee on Community Development, and

         10  this is not a bill that has been put together

         11  overnight. It goes back at least a couple of years,

         12  several hearings, focus groups, all kinds of

         13  informal meetings of people with expertise to arrive

         14  at what is before us this afternoon.

         15                 Today's hearing on Intro. 346

         16  provides a legislative remedy, a legislative remedy

         17  of dealing with the problem of poverty in our City

         18  by acting strategically through a targeted

         19  neighborhood-based approach. Acting strategically

         20  through a targeted neighborhood-based approach.

         21                 Now, the Administration is not

         22  foreign to this concept. As a matter of fact, it has

         23  been proven to be effective in addressing other

         24  problems in our City, namely the crime reduction,

         25  and also approaches in dealing with community
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          2  health. So, it's not a new concept to that extent.

          3                 To this effect, however, it

          4  represents ground-breaking socioeconomic criteria

          5  scheme. Ground-breaking socioeconomic criteria

          6  scheme, to create new designation of community

          7  development zone.

          8                 Intro 346 authorizes City agencies to

          9  enact collaboratively and strategically within these

         10  zones to address poverty, and of course to evaluate

         11  our progress over time.

         12                 So, I look forward to the testimony

         13  of the Administration and the community. We welcome

         14  your recommendations as it relates to this

         15  particular legislation that is aimed at reducing

         16  poverty in our City.

         17                 At the same time, I'd like to commend

         18  the Mayor and his Administration for their

         19  demonstrated courage and commitment of addressing

         20  this problem of poverty. He has done two things

         21  noteworthy: One, the creation of the Commission on

         22  Economic Opportunity; and secondly, the CNED

         23  Initiative that I'm sure you will be speaking on in

         24  a moment.

         25                 So, I look forward to seeing these
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          2  recommendations put into action and welcome a

          3  partnership toward supporting the Commissioner's

          4  efforts as well.

          5                 Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes. To that end,

          7  I hope I don't mispronounce your name, but we have

          8  given testimony from EDC, Mr. Tokumbo Shobowale.

          9                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Thank you. Good

         10  afternoon. As you said, my name is Tokumbo

         11  Shobowale. I'm a Senior Vice President with New York

         12  City's Economic Development Corporation. I would

         13  like to thank you, the Council, and particularly the

         14  Chairs, White and Vann, for this opportunity to

         15  speak and to comment on Introduction 346.

         16                 Let me again, by expressing our

         17  support of the Administration as a whole to the

         18  Council's objective of strategically addressing

         19  poverty, and creating economic opportunity in New

         20  York City.

         21                 The geographic approach proposed

         22  Introduction 346, which Council Member Vann just

         23  alluded to, recognizes that many of our City's

         24  neighborhoods face significant social and economic

         25  barriers to development and that addressing this
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          2  problem requires an examination of each community's

          3  specific challenges and strengths.

          4                 The Council's goals of promoting

          5  greater interagency coordination and private sector

          6  engagement are important components of any community

          7  development plan.

          8                 As Council Member Vann alluded to,

          9  the City is currently rolling out an initiative,

         10  similar to that proposed by Intro 346, that was

         11  developed in consultation with Council Member Vann.

         12  We've actually been working with him over the past

         13  year and a half, perhaps more on him on this issue.

         14                 This initiative, the Comprehensive

         15  Neighborhood Economic Development program, otherwise

         16  known as CNED, shares the central objective of

         17  Introduction 346, which is promoting economic

         18  development in New York City's distressed

         19  neighborhoods.

         20                 CNED addresses this goal by (a)

         21  helping low-wage and unemployed residents connect to

         22  opportunities for economic self-sufficiency, and

         23  (b), and the second part is very important for the

         24  long-term sustainability, by strengthening the local

         25  institutions that support these residents.
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          2                 And these institutions include the

          3  local government, community organizations, and local

          4  businesses that serve the communities.

          5                 The CNED program brings together City

          6  agencies, community groups and philanthropic

          7  organizations to jointly assess the needs of a

          8  targeted community and develop a coordinated plan

          9  for addressing these needs.

         10                 As Council Member Vann alluded to,

         11  there is a geographic approach to this. So, the CNED

         12  program is designed to target low-income residential

         13  communities that have greater than 30 percent of the

         14  population living below the poverty line, face

         15  persistent barriers to resident self-sufficiency

         16  represented by low rates of high school graduation

         17  and high unemployment, and this third piece is very

         18  important, have strong community organizations with

         19  a readiness for change.

         20                 We are currently piloting this

         21  program in Bedford Stuyvesant in Brooklyn. The

         22  initiative scope is centered around four

         23  programmatic areas. The first is workforce

         24  development, encompassing basic literacy and

         25  education, targeted skills training, job placement
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          2  and advancement services.

          3                 The second is asset building.

          4  Promoting basic money management skills, as well as

          5  access to financial services and income savings

          6  programs. The third focus area is business vitality,

          7  ensuring that local entrepreneurs have access to

          8  capital and to technical support. And the fourth

          9  area focuses on building the capacity of local

         10  non-profit organizations to provide quality

         11  programming.

         12                 We again recognize that for

         13  sustainability it's very important that the local

         14  CBOs have the capacity to continue serving the

         15  communities over time.

         16                 For the past four months, we have

         17  engaged in coordinating planning -- a coordinated

         18  planning process in Bedford Stuyvesant that has

         19  brought together City agencies, local community

         20  groups, and philanthropic organizations. And

         21  actually, I believe there will be testimony later

         22  today from a couple of the partners in CNED, Bedford

         23  Stuyvesant Restoration Corporation, and the Pratt

         24  Center for Community Development. They've been two

         25  very active partners in this process over the last
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          2  four months.

          3                 These actors have been meeting to

          4  conduct needs assessment for the community and

          5  develop programs to address service gaps.

          6                 This fall, as project proposals are

          7  finalized, we will seek both public and private

          8  sources to fund implementation.

          9                 In short, we believe this needs-based

         10  collaborative process for coordinating public and

         11  private investment is an important program for

         12  addressing neighborhood economic development, and

         13  that it will serve as the model that can be

         14  replicated in other high-need communities in New

         15  York City.

         16                 So, that's kind of CNED in a

         17  nutshell. I would like to highlight some key

         18  similarities between CNED and Intro 346. First,

         19  CNED, and this is what Council Member Vann was

         20  alluding to, is a geographically targeted approach

         21  to economic Development, focusing on neighborhoods

         22  with demonstrated needs.

         23                 Second, to identify target

         24  neighborhoods, CNED employs selection criteria very

         25  similar to those outlined in its introduction.
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          2                 Third, CNED brings together a set of

          3  actors similar to that proposed by the Council's

          4  Introduction; i.e., leaders from multiple City

          5  agencies, private and philanthropic organizations,

          6  and community groups.

          7                 Fourth, the CNED initiative calls for

          8  a similar process in target neighborhoods; namely,

          9  compiling an assessment of relevant community needs

         10  and formulating a coordinated approach action plan

         11  for addressing these needs.

         12                 Finally, both CNED and the proposed

         13  community development zone program put an emphasis

         14  on Interagency Coordination.

         15                 We recognize that many of the issues

         16  in these communities are tied together, so you can't

         17  simply address one issue at a time, this all needs

         18  to be tied together and coordinated.

         19                 While there are significant parallels

         20  between these two programs, there are also several

         21  differences.

         22                 Intro. 346 recommends simultaneous

         23  implementation in all qualifying neighborhoods.

         24  While the CNED program is beginning on a pilot basis

         25  in one community before expanding to additional
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          2  locations.

          3                 A key benefit of this pilot approach

          4  is that it allows us to identify lessons learned and

          5  make necessary process improvements so that when we

          6  do finally roll out to all the neighborhoods we can

          7  maximize the benefits when we replicate.

          8                 Second, CNED and the proposed Intro.

          9  346 have a different functional focus. Both address

         10  employment services and business revitalization.

         11  CNED, however, places additional emphasis on

         12  engaging local community organizations and program

         13  development implementation as we see that this is

         14  not something that government can solve by itself,

         15  it's something we need to do in conjunction with

         16  local community groups. And also on identifying

         17  projects that build local non-profit capacity,

         18  whereas Intro. 346 does not.

         19                 Intro. 346 also calls for additional

         20  human services, such as health services in parental

         21  engagement schools which are not part of CNED's core

         22  focus areas.

         23                 As you know, however, and this is

         24  something that Council Member Vann alluded to, the

         25  Mayor has pledged to combat poverty on his watch,
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          2  and many of the additional human services that are

          3  emphasized in Intro. 346 are being addressed as part

          4  of this pledge. And this is again what Council

          5  Member Vann alluded to. You all know about the CEO,

          6  the Mayor's Commission on Economic Opportunity, and

          7  this group has been tasked to develop

          8  recommendations that would release poverty in the

          9  City.

         10                 The Commission's report was released

         11  last week and endorsed by the Mayor, and CEO was the

         12  subject of a lengthy Council hearing last week,

         13  during which the Deputy Mayor presented the

         14  recommendations and responded to I think four or

         15  five hours of questions. So, I think you've heard a

         16  lot about that.

         17                 In short, the CNED and CEO

         18  initiatives together address the ideas set forth in

         19  Intro. 346. The combined economic development

         20  investments with social services delivery in an

         21  ambitious yet achievable strategy for reducing

         22  poverty in the City.

         23                 While we support the spirit of Intro.

         24  346, we believe that the CNED program, in

         25  conjunction with CEO initiatives meets the same core
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          2  objectives and follows a similar interagency

          3  approach. Existing initiatives also afford greater

          4  flexibility to make strategic decisions in

          5  particular areas of the City when required to meet

          6  our overall best economic development interests.

          7                 Rather than duplicating or hindering

          8  existing efforts at community development, it will

          9  be useful to focus the City's energies on

         10  implementing, evaluating and improving these

         11  programs currently underway.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  comment on Introduction 346 and provide an overview

         14  of the CNED pilot. We look forward to continuing to

         15  work with the Council, particularly Council Member

         16  Vann, on this and other initiatives to improve and

         17  address poverty in the City.

         18                 I will be happy to answer any

         19  questions you have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Before we begin

         21  the question and answering, there has been a request

         22  by Council Member Gerson, because of time

         23  constraints, he would like to have an opening

         24  statement.

         25                 Council Member Gerson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          3  much, Mr. Chair. Thank you for your indulgences, of

          4  my colleagues, and to our witness. I will be very

          5  brief.

          6                 Unfortunately, I have to make my way

          7  up to the nightlife security conference, which as

          8  you know is a major issue in my district.

          9                 But I needed to be here because this

         10  is a major issue not only in my district, but I

         11  think for our entire City. And I just want to thank

         12  and congratulate, Mr. Chair, yourself, Al Vann, for

         13  placing this issue squarely on the Council's agenda.

         14                 Al, you know from the very beginning

         15  I told you I wanted to be part of this process led

         16  by all of you, including -- oh, I could actually say

         17  this, my colleague to my right, that's Charles

         18  Barron. So, I just would like to say that, first of

         19  all, I would like to associate myself with Intro.

         20  346 and add my name is a sponsor.

         21                 I think it is absolutely critical

         22  that we proceed as swiftly as possible with the

         23  neighborhood focus and the multi-agency focus this

         24  lays out.

         25                 I'm sure we can absorb, and I'll
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          2  leave it to this Committee to pursue this further,

          3  but I'm sure we can absorb and work together with

          4  the points and the goals of the CNED program.

          5                 I just would add, just on a brief

          6  perusal of the testimony and what I heard, I'm very

          7  reluctant to delay matters by taking just a pilot

          8  program approach and then gradually phasing in, you

          9  know, you don't want to do anything too quickly but

         10  you also could pilot things and never get to people

         11  who are really at need.

         12                 So, on that point my preference would

         13  be to prefer the approach of 346 but we could

         14  probably work up the necessary adjustments, and I

         15  would just add my full and full-fledged support for

         16  this effort and for this Intro, and just with the

         17  additional point, as many of us have discussed, that

         18  we need to be creative in developing job

         19  opportunities and employment opportunities to

         20  include the development of worker-owned or

         21  employee-owned enterprises and businesses as part of

         22  the overall strategy and other prongs of different

         23  strategies we must apply.

         24                 Thank you for your indulgence and I

         25  look forward to working with both of you in this
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          2  Committee and I congratulate you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

          4  much. Your comment is so noted.

          5                 Chairman Vann.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes, good afternoon

          7  again. Thank you for your testimony. The first

          8  question that comes to mind is, first of all, I have

          9  not been shy about commending the Mayor for taking

         10  this on. I think that takes a certain amount of

         11  courage and I would think sensitivity to recognize

         12  that this is something that has to be addressed. I

         13  mean, poverty has been with us since mankind, and

         14  not a lot of people have really seriously tried to

         15  really reduce poverty or eliminate poverty. We have

         16  sort of taken it for granted that it will always be

         17  with us. The rich take care of themselves. We do a

         18  lot to try and make sure middle class remains middle

         19  class and extend that, but poor people essentially

         20  have to fend for themselves, unless government takes

         21  the initiative and pulls together the necessary

         22  resources both intellectual and material to make

         23  sure that we have a strategy and a plan in mind that

         24  will over time reduce poverty. And, so, for the

         25  Mayor to take that on, that makes sense. And he set

                                                            19

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  a couple of programs in motion.

          3                 I think that in order to address

          4  poverty it's not anybody's particular plan or

          5  strategy, it has to be everybody's. Anything that

          6  makes sense, and that will help us to achieve this

          7  goal or a plan, I think that it ought to be found a

          8  way to be incorporated.

          9                 Having said that, what is it about

         10  346 that you think is inconsistent or cannot be

         11  incorporated in the Administration's approaches thus

         12  far to try and reduce poverty?

         13                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I think, and also in

         14  responding to your question and to Council Member

         15  Gerson's question, I think with our approach of

         16  having a pilot, you don't intend to wait a long time

         17  before going on to other communities. I think we'd

         18  like to roll it out as quickly as possible, but on

         19  implementing anything, to realize that this is very

         20  complicated. So, it's much easier said than done to

         21  have all the various agencies coordinated. As you

         22  point out, this is something that's been around as a

         23  problem for time in memorial, and it's a complex

         24  process to get everything together and create this

         25  coordinated plan.
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          2                 And, so, our approach is very much to

          3  get this right, and not to wait too long, but also

          4  not to rush it prematurely. And so we are moving as

          5  fast as we can. And part of the reason it also takes

          6  more time is that we are coordinating, as you know,

          7  with a variety of community groups, because we

          8  realize that this is something we can't just be top

          9  down from the City or from the government. Something

         10  if we want to work in concert with community groups,

         11  but we want to work out the bugs and make sure we

         12  get that right and as soon as we can, expand that to

         13  more areas.

         14                 And I think the concern is if it's

         15  something that's mandated you have to have a certain

         16  schedule, that we may lose some of those benefits,

         17  which is not to mean that we're dragging our feet,

         18  but we just want to make sure that we have time that

         19  when we get it right, then we proceed as opposed to

         20  making sure to proceed immediately without having

         21  that time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Along those lines

         23  then what is the plan between a relationship going

         24  forward between CNED and the Commission, the

         25  Commission's report.
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          2                 MR. SHOBOWALE: That's something we're

          3  still working out. We've been coordinated very

          4  closely all along. And as I mentioned in my

          5  testimony, CNED has more of an economic development

          6  focus, whereas the Commission includes not just

          7  economic opportunity, but also falls in social

          8  services more than educational things.

          9                 What we're working on now is making

         10  sure we layer those so they're complimentary and

         11  that's something which is still being developed. As

         12  you know, the Commission just released their

         13  preliminary report last week and there's a lot of

         14  details that may be worked out.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: In other words,

         16  whatever programs and initiatives that exist

         17  already, if they can be complimentary to the

         18  strategy going forward, both out of the Commission

         19  or CNED, the Administration would like to

         20  incorporate that into the pilot or quota; is that

         21  what we're saying?

         22                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Yes. Obviously they

         23  need to work hand-in-glove, and I think as you have

         24  in the Intro, there is recognition that economic

         25  development and the social things go together, and
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          2  there are just functional constraints on how much

          3  you can coordinate all at once. And so our approach

          4  with CNED has been to say on the economic

          5  development side of things, we have that side of the

          6  house coordinated. Because if you make it too big

          7  and there's too many people or cooks in the kitchen,

          8  obviously then you sometimes, you don't get

          9  anywhere.

         10                 We're trying to sort of have a piece

         11  which we can organize, which we've done with CNED,

         12  and now we're coordinating with CEO to make sure we

         13  have that component as well. To the extent that we

         14  can, we want to coordinate that going forward.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: And the bottom

         16  line, however, is that we are trying to find a way

         17  to work with people, human beings, to make sure that

         18  they are able to become gainfully employed, to

         19  become business owners, or whatever the case may be,

         20  and you will find in areas where are designated

         21  poor, there are concomitants of that poverty and

         22  there are problems that individuals have that we

         23  have to deal with in order to become employable or

         24  an employer, if you will.

         25                 So, I think if we don't take that
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          2  into consideration in the equation, you know,

          3  whether it's child care, whether it's drug

          4  addiction, you know, whatever it is, that we are

          5  missing the boat, we're not dealing with the problem

          6  per se, and I'm sure you don't want to do that.

          7                 The other thing that comes to mind

          8  is, we are term limited in New York City, the Mayor,

          9  myself, many others. So that let's say you were

         10  setting something in motion that makes sense to this

         11  Mayor and then another Mayor comes in, and perhaps

         12  he doesn't have the same priority. So, what happens

         13  to the report from the Commission, what happens to

         14  CNED in similar programs?

         15                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Well, I mean,

         16  obviously this Administration can't commit a future

         17  administration to do anything, but our desire and

         18  intent is to make sure that things are fully

         19  underway and that we have systems in place that work

         20  and that have the support of this Council, of this

         21  Council, of the future Council, of the citizenry of

         22  the City so that there's enough support. And also I

         23  think that's one of the reasons for involving local

         24  community-based organizations and also involving

         25  philanthropic organizations, the foundations of the

                                                            24

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  City and so on, so that there is, as you say, it's

          3  not just one person's, it's everybody's plans are

          4  baked into this and so that that will carry a weight

          5  going forward, that will be momentum that cannot be

          6  stopped.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: That's a good

          8  thought. But Brother Shobowale, don't you think the

          9  people of this City need to have more of a guarantee

         10  than what will be the priority of the next Mayor,

         11  the next City Council member, don't you think it

         12  would make a lot more sense to at least legislate a

         13  plan, a strategy, so that people will come and go

         14  but they will have to respond to the law, the

         15  statute that's in place, just trying to deal with

         16  the needs of poor people, as opposed to the best

         17  thought, or the best whim of a particular Mayor and

         18  so forth?

         19                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Well, you've been

         20  around in this business much longer than I have, but

         21  my sense is that regardless of the law, if it's not

         22  the priority of whomever is in power, you can,

         23  simply having a law that you need to report on

         24  things, or do certain activities, doesn't guarantee

         25  that things will be done as they should be.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: My brother, you're

          3  showing your political naivete'. Without a law,

          4  without a structure, you cannot have any

          5  accountability. Even if a Mayor comes in, he doesn't

          6  really want to carry out what is on the books, what

          7  is law, the City Council can hold them to that or

          8  vice versa, but without the statute, we really don't

          9  have a basis for demanding that we really deal with

         10  the problems of poverty.

         11                 I understand the Administration's

         12  concern. I understand -- well, I don't understand

         13  it, I understand why they're taking it. I don't

         14  understand that in our commitment to deal with

         15  poverty, which is in everybody's interest, those in

         16  middle class and those who are not, that we can't

         17  have an open-mindedness about best practices. That's

         18  the word. That's the buzz word today, best

         19  practices. Whatever is good, whether it comes from

         20  the Mayor, and a lot of good is coming from that,

         21  whether it's coming from the City Council, we can

         22  incorporate that in a plan, because it's not about

         23  who has come up with the best idea, it's about are

         24  there some ideas that can be put into an action plan

         25  that will work, that people will have some hope,
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          2  number one, and will be inspired to do something

          3  because they know there's a way. There's a light at

          4  the end of the title. If I do this, I do that, you

          5  know, I can get me a job. I can become a fireman, a

          6  policeman, you know, whatever. So, all the good that

          7  the Administration is doing, I hope they will not

          8  lose it by being shortsighted and not finding a way

          9  to define us in as opposed to defining us out.

         10                 I think that's going to be very key

         11  moving forward.

         12                 I'm going to yield at this time to

         13  the Chair, and reserve the right to come back,

         14  obviously.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Before I'm going

         16  to call upon my colleague, Council Member Barron,

         17  but I would like to get your views on the fact that

         18  isn't there an obligation on the part of government

         19  to address the issues of poverty?

         20                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I think we share that

         21  view --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: It's not whether

         23  we should, or whether we shouldn't. I think we have

         24  an obligation as government to take care of people

         25  who are in poverty. And I don't know whether or not

                                                            27

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  you agree with that or not. I'm looking at the

          3  social economic aspects that Chairman Vann pointed

          4  out in terms of, yes, any future Mayor would have

          5  the options of setting the priority of the City of

          6  New York, and that's true. But in those priorities I

          7  think we're talking about listed in those

          8  priorities, and as I say, we made it priority number

          9  one under this Administration. Another Mayor comes

         10  in, he doesn't want it priority number one, but it

         11  doesn't lose a priority number. It might become

         12  priority number six or priority number seven. So, I

         13  think that's where Chairman Vann was going, and I

         14  think your response was given appropriately in terms

         15  of any Mayor, you know, you can't obligate another

         16  Mayor to, or, you know, his priority. But we have

         17  State, City agencies here, and they're not going out

         18  of existence, but what their priorities are will be

         19  determined by whoever the Mayor is.

         20                 So, I guess what my colleague is

         21  saying, can we put this into an area of a priority,

         22  from a socioeconomic standpoint of view so that it

         23  could be funded and considered by whoever the Mayor

         24  might be as a move forward with a growth and

         25  development of the City; is that right? Can that be
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          2  done?

          3                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I think we agree there

          4  should be a structure in place. And I agree with

          5  Council Member Vann, with you, Council Member White.

          6  I think that part of the feeling is this is

          7  something that we're working out, the best way to do

          8  it, and so what you're talking about is legislating

          9  an approach to doing this to make sure that we have

         10  it in perpetuity, because this should be, always a

         11  responsibility of the City, and I think what we're

         12  saying is that we agree we want to work it out in a

         13  way that makes sense. We're still working out,

         14  working it out, and that's very inclusive, and

         15  that's why, again, we've met and continue to meet

         16  Council Member Vann and continue to want to have all

         17  of the conversations with all of the Council on this

         18  topic, but it seems that we are still working out

         19  some of the details, it's complicated.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Of course it's

         21  complicated. But the mere fact is, if there is a

         22  will and a desire to address this issue, okay, then

         23  it will addressed. How it's worked out, we don't

         24  know yet.

         25                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: But the commitment

          3  is that we will work it out; is that the answer

          4  you're giving?

          5                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Yes. And that's the

          6  purpose of CNED, and that's, again, the Mayor has

          7  very publicly put himself out there with this

          8  commitment to battle poverty. And, again, it's a

          9  complex problem, that to our knowledge no other City

         10  has addressed this in such a comprehensive way, and,

         11  so, we can't point to it and say, you know, Memphis

         12  did it this way and that's how we're going to do it.

         13  Or that Brussels did it this way and that's how

         14  we're going to do it.

         15                 There's no place we can point to and

         16  just take the model and copy it and say that's what

         17  works. So, we're working through it real time right

         18  now and want to engage you all in that process. And

         19  it's just going to take that time. So, there's a

         20  commitment to get it done, and it's just a matter of

         21  how.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 Council Member Barron.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very
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          2  much, Mr. Chair. And I want to commend both of you,

          3  particularly you, Mr. Vann, and Mr. White, for this

          4  critical issue of dealing with poverty. And I also

          5  want to have my name included, you know, on the

          6  resolution.

          7                 You know, I guess I'm just losing

          8  patience. You know, we've been the most studied

          9  people, the most piloted program people, probably in

         10  the world. They have no problems creating the

         11  poverty but eradicating it is always complicated.

         12  But I don't see no real dollars connected to a

         13  program, and talking about interagency involvement,

         14  we've been down that road before, and I think this

         15  is the right direction, but I know when Ratner wants

         16  money, his dollars come like that, 100 million. When

         17  the Yankee Stadium wanted money, they get 100

         18  million. No complicated process, no we gotta figure

         19  out how we're going to do this. Any time these rich

         20  developers need something to fatten their pockets

         21  and give out some jobs and contracts and affordable

         22  housing, of course, any time they want that, it is

         23  not complicated. We don't have to study how we're

         24  going to do it. We don't need a pilot program to see

         25  how it's going to get done, but when we want to
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          2  eradicate poverty while you're doing a pilot in Bed

          3  Stuy, and that's excellent, people are dying. Crime

          4  is connected to poverty. We don't need more cops, we

          5  need more job creation, not just workforce

          6  development, and, you know, the Mayor's approach

          7  was, you know, give us money to study, give us money

          8  to make sure we go to our health, to our doctors and

          9  get our check-ups, give us money to do those kind of

         10  -- first of all, that's embarrassing and racist, I

         11  think. But you know, I just want to know how serious

         12  is this, you know, a little pilot program in a City

         13  that has a $53 billion budget, New York City's

         14  budget is larger than every African country's

         15  budget, it's larger than every Caribbean nation's

         16  budget, it's larger than 48 states in the United

         17  States, yet we got 42 percent poverty in the South

         18  Bronx, 30 some odd percent in Harlem and in

         19  Brooklyn, and our sponsor this, let's have a little

         20  pilot program in Bed Stuy and see how it works,

         21  let's get the agencies working together, it takes

         22  time, it's complicated, we can gradually do this

         23  thing, you know people are dying while we're

         24  gradually doing this thing.

         25                 How much money is connected to this
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          2  approach to poverty? Is there a dollar amount that's

          3  connected to this effort to eradicate poverty?

          4                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I can't give you a

          5  full answer in the sense that we're working on that.

          6  We're developing a set of -- I'm just being honest

          7  with you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Honesty is

          9  fine, but don't expect me to sit here and be happy

         10  with honestly you're working on it. You know, when

         11  no one else has to wait for dollars signed. They

         12  don't have to wait. It's not you. It's you here

         13  getting the heat because they sent you. So, it's not

         14  you, and I don't want you to take this personally.

         15  But, you know, it's just hard for me to sit here,

         16  and we don't even have a dollar sign.

         17                 You know when I would feel good? If

         18  we had a $6.1 billion surplus in the budget, you

         19  knew that, right? 6.1 billion. The Mayor talked us

         20  into letting him put 2 billion into some health,

         21  deferred health program. If he would have said he

         22  has a billion toward getting rid of poverty, now

         23  let's work it out. Now let's work out these things

         24  that are complicated. He has a billion dollars. He

         25  has a $500 million program to eradicate poverty. To
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          2  have nothing and say we're working it out, we'll

          3  give you some change if you go study, and how real

          4  is this? You know, don't mess up your job, but how

          5  real is this?

          6                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I want to note, all

          7  duly noted. I want to note, though, that the City is

          8  doing a lot already. So, putting aside CEO, putting

          9  aside CNED, the City does a lot already in terms of

         10  housing, affordable housing, there are a lot of

         11  social services that all of our sister agencies

         12  provide. So, it's not that the City is doing

         13  nothing. Point well taken that the problem is not

         14  solved. There are still a lot of, far too much

         15  poverty, a lot of people dying. But it's not that

         16  the City's, of that $53 billion, I don't know how

         17  much is being spent for the social service agencies

         18  that's directed to --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay, I don't

         20  mean that, but how much is toward this new

         21  initiative to eradicate poverty? Is there a dollar

         22  --

         23                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Right. I mean, the

         24  honest answer is we don't know yet. We're working on

         25  that because we're developing specific projects.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: When will -- I

          3  mean --

          4                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Because the answer is

          5  not just to say-- this is something that New York

          6  City and many other places, just throwing money at

          7  something does not solve it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: As they say

          9  all the time, throw it. Throw the money our way.

         10  Because every time we want money, every time we want

         11  a problem solved, they say just throwing money at it

         12  is not going to get it. But the white, the rich

         13  white men, they get the money thrown at them, and,

         14  you know, they solve their problems throwing the

         15  money at them. But when it comes to us, oh, it's not

         16  just about money.

         17                 I just think it would be better, and

         18  you can give me a time line on when we'll have a

         19  dollar figure. But I think it's better when you know

         20  what you're working with really. You know, when you

         21  can say, all right, but this new initiative toward

         22  poverty, whatever the programs are, you're going to

         23  have $50 million, you're going to have 10 million,

         24  100 million. Like we go in with the City Council and

         25  workforce development, we got 34 million over the
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          2  last two, three budgets, that's what we have to work

          3  with. So, then we've developed our programs within

          4  the context of that which we have to work with. But

          5  to do it the other way, like we'll see what we're

          6  doing and figure out the money later. Is there a

          7  time period for when we'll know how much?

          8                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Late this year and

          9  early next year we'll have a budget for CNED pilot.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay.

         11                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I think there's a

         12  similar time frame also for CEO that I can't speak

         13  about, but I think the Deputy Mayor Gibbs spoke

         14  about it at the last Council hearing, and that again

         15  is something that's being worked on now.

         16                 So, there is an urgency.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.

         18                 MR. SHOBOWALE: And this

         19  Administration, the Mayor knows we've got only so

         20  much time to get things done and we wants to get

         21  things done.

         22                 So, I understand the urgency that you

         23  all feel, but I also feel it is, given that this is

         24  a problem that has been around for hundreds of

         25  years, it's not unreasonable to ask for a little
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          2  time to work out some of the details. And, again,

          3  the Administration will continue to engage with you

          4  all on this process but --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: No, I

          6  understand, definitely have time to work out

          7  details, but I think it's easy when you're in a

          8  budget year to say we're putting $50 billion this

          9  way. See, that doesn't take work out details. I

         10  mean, that's looking at your budget and see how much

         11  we can allocate to seriously eradicate poverty.

         12                 See, I understand the details that

         13  have to be worked out, believe me. We're even

         14  working out details now with the workforce

         15  development money we have. It's taken us a year just

         16  to get out 14 million and now we're going to take

         17  probably another bit of time, but we knew we had 14

         18  million, see, and that which I think is pocket

         19  change around here, but still we had something to

         20  work with.

         21                 And I think people appreciate efforts

         22  and sincerity more when there's a dollar figure

         23  assigned to it, and it's not just throwing dollars

         24  at money, you know, it takes money to eradicate

         25  poverty. And it's no reflection about you, because I
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          2  hear very, very good things about you, but it's the

          3  Administration I have real serious issues with

          4  around this question.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you

          8  very much, Councilman Barron.

          9                 I have a question, if you can answer

         10  it.

         11                 Who are the leading private

         12  institutions, foundations and corporations that have

         13  partnered with the City under the Administration to

         14  directly address the poverty reduction?

         15                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Well, on the last

         16  page, I believe we have, there is a chart in the

         17  back here, which shows some of the private partners,

         18  the third column on the right, are some

         19  philanthropic institutions that we have been working

         20  with in developing this program, the CNED program.

         21                 Some, a couple have already given

         22  some money to fund the planning process in the

         23  outreach to the communities that we've been engaging

         24  in, and the others have not yet committed a dollar

         25  figure, but have been involved in this planning
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          2  process and we expect to support the effort going

          3  forward.

          4                 There are also some other foundations

          5  that as part of the Commission on Economic

          6  Opportunity, that will probably support the effort

          7  as well. But, again, I can't speak to that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. How does the

          9  City use the annual socioeconomic data produced by

         10  the United States Census Bureau, recently reported

         11  that the City's poverty rates have remained stagnant

         12  at 22 percent.

         13                 MR. SHOBOWALE: How does the

         14  Administration use that data?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes.

         16                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I can't speak to all

         17  of the various agencies and how they use it.

         18                 I mean, in terms of the CNED pilot,

         19  we use that in identifying areas of focus.

         20                 So, one of the ways in which we

         21  selected Bedford Stuyvesant as a place to start is

         22  given the data, the census data on the poverty level

         23  in Bedford Stuyvesant. Given that it was above 30

         24  percent and a number of other criteria were met,

         25  that was why we picked Bed Stuy, and how we planned
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          2  when we rolled out the other areas to use that data

          3  to support that, the rollout efforts.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          5                 I recently saw on CNN, Sunday, I

          6  believe it was on a Sunday, a press question and

          7  answer segment where the Census Bureau was reporting

          8  on its latest census and the data in identifying the

          9  nation's health in terms of education and how many

         10  people there are et cetera, and a very interesting

         11  comment was made that even though that was the

         12  latest data, that it was sort of like faulted

         13  because they don't really believe that the people

         14  that were counted is the real number. But since

         15  that's the only number they had, they would have to

         16  utilize that.

         17                 So, when I look at the 22 percent,

         18  I'm saying it's probably higher than that in and of

         19  itself.

         20                 And I'd like to make a comment about

         21  the issue of poverty on one level, and it's what my

         22  grandfather said. He said that my family, we were

         23  not poor, we were just broke. And being poor means

         24  that you don't have any rich ideas, you don't have

         25  any imagination, you don't have any thoughts of
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          2  moving ahead and being broke is a temporary

          3  situation. And I guess that's what we're talking

          4  about here.

          5                 I think that the whole concept of

          6  poverty paints a picture of a group of people that

          7  are so needy that they do not have dreams, ambitions

          8  or even the wherewithal or the will, you know, to

          9  move up, as Chairman Vann said, to become

         10  employable, to get an education, and open up

         11  businesses, et cetera.

         12                 It's almost like if we were to get

         13  into the business of addressing poverty, okay, not

         14  that we would just be eliminating it, but the people

         15  that are coming out of poverty will be those who are

         16  giving back to those who are less fortunate as well,

         17  and will probably be on this list that we currently

         18  have. So, it's really an investment.

         19                 And also the Mayor has done some

         20  wonderful things in the area of building up the City

         21  and bringing up business and giving people in the

         22  private sector incentive to coming into the City,

         23  and I think that there should be incentive given to

         24  these individuals with investing in this poverty --

         25  we used to have the war on poverty about which
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          2  president did it, Johnson, the war on poverty, what

          3  happened to that, to those statistics, did it work?

          4  You know, how did it work? You know? So that's a

          5  definite sign of what we need done for the City of

          6  New York. The Mayor needs to take it on the same way

          7  he took on wanting the education of the City of New

          8  York, okay? So he needs to take on the other end,

          9  that part of the poverty because you can't go to

         10  school hungry and learn.

         11                 I mean, right now if I was to ask

         12  everybody if they had lunch, the ones who said no, I

         13  wouldn't want to call on because I know they would

         14  have to have an attitude because they're hungry, all

         15  right? But if you had lunch, I might have to wake

         16  you up because you would get a little sleepy, so I'm

         17  just adding a little levity to it, that this is not

         18  really a game. This is real, and these are people

         19  that have something to offer the City of New York,

         20  but we have to help them help themselves, lift

         21  themselves up and not be dependent on it.

         22                 With that being said, I will turn it

         23  over to -- I would like to call on my colleague,

         24  Councilwoman Palma.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair.

          3                 I have a quick question. Late last

          4  week, Deputy Mayor Gibbs testified before the

          5  General Welfare and in her testimony she had

          6  mentioned the CNED component, however, we never got

          7  a clear picture on how the Mayor's Commission on

          8  Economic Opportunity and CNED, do they connect

          9  somehow? I mean, I wanted to raise the question but

         10  my colleague already did, in terms of budget for

         11  those. And you clearly stated the Mayor or the

         12  Administration doesn't have a budget yet.

         13                 So, it's just disturbing -- well, not

         14  disturbing, but interesting to know, how is it going

         15  to function if we don't have a dollar amount to

         16  these programs and see how they're going to be

         17  rolled out?

         18                 But does the CEO and CNED connect

         19  somehow? Are they going to be working on a parallel

         20  line, and how is that going to happen?

         21                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Yes, we certainly will

         22  be working together, and we have been coordinating

         23  over the last six months, roughly, since the Mayor

         24  announced the Commission.

         25                 And, again, to be perfectly honest,
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          2  it's evolving. We haven't figured out all the ways

          3  in which we're going to work together, but as

          4  Council Member Vann alluded to, you need to have --

          5  people who need jobs often don't have jobs for

          6  reasons and there are other factors involved, in

          7  terms of substance abuse, in terms of needing child

          8  care. You can't be at work if you have to take care

          9  of a child or an old person or a parent or what have

         10  you.

         11                 So, these things are clearly related

         12  and we recognize these have to be tied together and

         13  so we're working to figure out how those fit.

         14                 I mentioned the Deputy Mayor spoke

         15  about how there are going to be some pilot

         16  communities, and we're figuring out the details but

         17  clearly we need to have both economic development

         18  and the social services side linked together.

         19                 But, again, we're sort of both

         20  blessed and cursed in the City that we have such a

         21  large City and such a large City government, there

         22  are hundreds of thousands of City employees, and

         23  it's a feat to get everything to coordinate.

         24                 So, people are going to be doing

         25  their own activities, but it comes to coordinating
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          2  across various agencies, there's more involved there

          3  to get that right. And, so, we're still working off

          4  that process, but we sure want to make sure we tie

          5  together, have cross referrals, so people working in

          6  our development can make referrals to colleagues in

          7  social services and vice versa, to make sure that

          8  people have all of the things that they need.

          9                 Again, as far as the budget goes,

         10  again, I wish I had a budget figure for you now, but

         11  we're still working it out, and certainly by the

         12  time the next year's budget is, I mean, there's a

         13  process, as you know, we're just starting a

         14  budgeting process and this will be in the budget for

         15  the next year.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And so for

         17  those folks who are in this present situation that

         18  hopefully the CEO program and CNED will help bring

         19  out of poverty, how does the population of our young

         20  men primarily and women who are coming home from the

         21  prison system? How are we going to be integrated

         22  into this, because what I see now a lot with the

         23  workforce development programs that are in place and

         24  they work great for some but for this population,

         25  it's like no help at all to them.
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          2                 So, do we have a plan for them? And

          3  if not, are we going to be developing something? You

          4  know, the Administration is going to be developing a

          5  program to make them fit into what we're trying to

          6  do here?

          7                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Yes, I don't have a

          8  specific answer to that. I mean, there are programs,

          9  such as the DOE Fund and others, that work with that

         10  population, that's not something that we have sort

         11  of fully baked.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Council Member

         13  Reyna.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.

         16                 I just wanted to take the opportunity

         17  to ask, as far as a time line funding this

         18  particular program within the scope, will you, or

         19  have you thought of a microlending service

         20  opportunity piece so that I know that in our area

         21  we're trying to focus in franchises that we can

         22  introduce to individuals in our communities, and

         23  we're each, in our own distinctive ways, trying to

         24  fight the war on poverty, and so this is my way. And

         25  I've engaged our non-profit in conjunction with its
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          2  manufacturing industrial arm, to try to figure out a

          3  way as to how can we bring in further businesses

          4  into our area. And it's not easy. It's not easy to

          5  make our poor community attractive for businesses to

          6  come and invest, breaking those, you know, those

          7  labels of there's no economic purchasing power

          8  there, when we're probably one of the most of the

          9  prevalent communities probably spending money

         10  elsewhere.

         11                 And, so, taking a look at franchises

         12  that bring in opportunities such as health, health

         13  benefits, livable wage incomes, you know, good

         14  working conditions, you know, opportunities to

         15  invest within corporations is what we're seeking.

         16                 I know that there is a business in

         17  the Union Square area called "Trader Joes,"

         18  apparently their part-time employees have

         19  full-benefit and don't have to necessarily work

         20  full-time, and I believe it's a franchise. But these

         21  are the types of marriages that we need to start

         22  looking into to expand and implement. And if

         23  Manhattan and Union Square has it, why can't North

         24  Brooklyn have it?

         25                 And, so, I'm making it my business,
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          2  and it's difficult. And I need an agency like EDC to

          3  identify this, not only identify it, bring them out

          4  into these neighborhoods and say this is where the

          5  market is, this is where you'll find your workforce.

          6  This is where you'll invest for years to come,

          7  because we are the emerging communities that can

          8  lift the City of New York.

          9                 In addition to that, the microlending

         10  piece is the arm to answer, establishing these

         11  franchises, because if I have Mr. Vazquez, who is

         12  interested in opening up his Trader Joes because he

         13  knows it works, but he has no funding to start it

         14  up, how am I going to help him? He has very little

         15  savings and that's his rainy day funds.

         16                 There is no Citibank that is going to

         17  help him open up because all he needs is less than

         18  maybe $20,000, and that doesn't exist in a big bank.

         19  You can't go in there and say I need five-,

         20  ten-thousand dollars, just to open up my first

         21  business.

         22                 So, if this is not part, and I'll

         23  allow you to tell me if this is part of the agenda,

         24  your scope, can you go back and figure out a way to

         25  add it, and think of a district as far as North
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          2  Brooklyn is concerned, which is something that I

          3  continue to ask EDC to partner with, but I don't

          4  know if EDC has the willingness to go beyond what

          5  they're working on now, which is concentrated in

          6  Manhattan. And it's not concentrated in Manhattan,

          7  but it's concentrated in the areas that don't need

          8  it the most. Let's just put it that way.

          9                 So, I will allow you the opportunity

         10  to answer, if there is anything that you'd like to

         11  share.

         12                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'll just give

         14  you my piece, because it's important that it goes

         15  back to the right ears. And it's not new

         16  information, it's old information.

         17                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Thank you.

         18                 Regarding the microlending, that's

         19  something that's colleagues at EDC are certainly

         20  working on a lot, and they've been very innovative

         21  in the last year or two in trying to develop new

         22  ways to use the IDA to fund smaller loan amounts

         23  that are not available from commercial lenders.

         24                 So, the vast majority of the IDA

         25  lending goes to non-for-profits and now they're
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          2  developing this microlending arm. And I believe, I'm

          3  not sure, I can get back to you on this, that that

          4  was one of the recommendations as part of CEO. But

          5  there are certainly colleagues at EDC who are

          6  looking at ways to extend the City's resources into

          7  microlending to support exactly the kind of

          8  enterprises that you're talking about.

          9                 But I just do have to emphatically

         10  disagree with you about the EDC's work being focused

         11  in Manhattan, because it most certainly is not.

         12                 When I look at the people around me

         13  in the building working at various projects, it's

         14  the South Bronx, it's Brooklyn, it's many other

         15  places.

         16                 So, maybe some may say it's not in

         17  the areas most focused, but things like Bronx

         18  Terminal Market, things like the Kingsbridge Armory

         19  RFP which we just issued. Again, you may not

         20  incidentally agree with the projects but they are

         21  most certainly not focused in Manhattan.

         22                 The Mayor definitely has a

         23  five-borough --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: We'll agree to

         25  disagree but you're not in North Brooklyn, and I've
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          2  been eager to get you there for the last five years.

          3  I have yet to see you guys there.

          4                 MR. SHOBOWALE: But in terms of your

          5  question of microlending, I assume you're talking

          6  about Avidco (phonetic) that you're working with in

          7  this area. They're wonderful and we certainly work

          8  with them a lot. I mean, industrial strategy, and if

          9  they're working on microlending, it may be possible

         10  to arrange conversations with colleagues in the IDA

         11  who are working on this microlending and see if

         12  there's a way that we can work together.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Let me acknowledge

         15  the presence of Councilwoman Arroyo, who has joined

         16  us.

         17                 I have a question.

         18                 How does the City Workforce 1 centers

         19  address social welfare concerns of low-income job

         20  seekers that serve as barriers to employment? And

         21  are there social services available on site to job

         22  seekers visiting the City's Workforce 1 centers?

         23                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I'm sorry, that

         24  question I'm going to have to defer to my colleagues

         25  at SBS who administer the Workforce 1 centers. But
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          2  we can certainly have them respond and answer that

          3  question to you directly.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          5                 Are community-based or community

          6  district level funding formulas applies as if? And

          7  if so, how is this formula triggered? And if so,

          8  what City agencies frequently use such

          9  community-based focus, funding formulas, and for

         10  what programs?

         11                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I'm sorry, I'm going

         12  to have to ask you to expand a bit. I don't quite

         13  understand the question.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, I'll take it

         15  in pieces.

         16                 Are community-based or community

         17  district level funding formulas applied?

         18                 MR. SHOBOWALE: So, basically, is

         19  funding allocated on a community district basis by

         20  various City agencies?

         21                 Am I understanding your question

         22  properly?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes, I guess you

         24  are.

         25                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I believe, and I have
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          2  to again have colleagues confirm this, but I believe

          3  DYCD funds, a lot of their funding is allocated on a

          4  community district needs basis. So, they will look

          5  at where the poverty is greatest and they allocate

          6  their funds accordingly.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, do you

          8  believe that there is any legal disability to the

          9  enactment of Intro. 346?

         10                 MR. SHOBOWALE: That I will definitely

         11  have to defer to the Law Department. I'm not an

         12  attorney, so I can't comment on that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: We would have to

         14  know that. I mean, we're talking about --

         15                 MR. SHOBOWALE: We'll definitely,

         16  again, have the Law Department respond to that

         17  directly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes. Because we've

         19  been talking about this, and how important it is and

         20  if there is some legal ramifications that will not

         21  allow this to go forward, then, you know, we're

         22  wasting our time. So, we would have to know that.

         23                 MR. SHOBOWALE: So we'll take that to

         24  the Law Department immediately and make sure that

         25  they can respond to your question.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, and will you

          3  see that Chairman Vann, as well as I, will get a

          4  response to that?

          5                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I will respond to both

          6  of you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. Given the

          8  recommendation of the Mayor's Commission on Economic

          9  Opportunity, do you know of any conflict or

         10  inconsistencies that Intro. 346 presents with

         11  respect to the Commission's recommendations?

         12                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Not knowing 100

         13  percent of their recommendations, again I think I

         14  will defer that to Deputy Mayor Gibbs's staff.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, we would

         16  have to have that answer as well.

         17                 Chairman Vann.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Thank you, Brother

         19  White.

         20                 Do you have any questions, Council

         21  member? I know you just entered, but you may have

         22  some concerns before I do that.

         23                 (Not using microphone).

         24                 I'm sorry, I didn't hear what you

         25  said? Are you sure? Okay, you can always come back.
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          2  No problem.

          3                 There are just a couple of questions

          4  in terms of finding out how the Administration feels

          5  about 346.

          6                 Is there an opinion about the

          7  development of community zone needs statement and

          8  the action plan for high poverty areas in New York

          9  City? Does the Administration have an opinion on

         10  that element of 346?

         11                 MR. SHOBOWALE: On the development of

         12  the zones?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes. And the

         14  statement of needs and action plan.

         15                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Again, as I alluded to

         16  in my testimony, I think it's very consistent with

         17  what we're doing in CNED that we feel it's

         18  appropriate and important to develop

         19  geographically-based needs assessments and plans to

         20  address those by community.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Okay.

         22                 Does the Administration have a

         23  position on the governance board structure that is

         24  proposed in Intro. 346?

         25                 MR. SHOBOWALE: I'm not completely
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          2  familiar with that so I will defer that question and

          3  we can respond to that later.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Okay. Okay.

          5                 In the testimony you made reference

          6  to the community involvement, and I just want to

          7  make sure that you and the record was clear on the

          8  three levels of involvement that is provided for in

          9  346, community involvement. Number one, it provides

         10  for appointment to the Board, on the governance

         11  board, the Mayor can appoint community participation

         12  at that level.

         13                 The community participation

         14  development of the needs statement, as well as the

         15  action plan; and, of course, the third and ongoing

         16  is public hearings, to get involved in that way. So,

         17  I didn't want you to think that we were not

         18  anticipating and providing for, you know, community

         19  involvement.

         20                 Are there any further questions?

         21                 Do you believe that there is -- yes,

         22  very important. Is there any legal disability to the

         23  enactment of 346?

         24                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Again, not being the

         25  attorney, I will defer that question to the Law
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          2  Department, so we can have a response to you, both

          3  you and Chair White, as soon as possible.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: It's very important

          5  we get your opinion. Not necessarily that being what

          6  it is, but we'd like to know the opinion.

          7                 And finally, we would really like a

          8  speedy response to that particular question, so, you

          9  know, to expedite that.

         10                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Understood.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: And you're phasing

         12  in, we know it's a process that's working, is there

         13  any particular schedule for the phase-in of CNED to

         14  other --

         15                 MR. SHOBOWALE: No, just as soon as

         16  possible. I mean, as you know, we have been meeting

         17  quite frequently over the summer to establish the

         18  project plans. We plan to finalize those over the

         19  fall, and start implementation.

         20                 And as soon as we have sort of

         21  wrapped up that process and seeing how that's gone,

         22  we'd like to roll it out as soon as possible to

         23  other neighborhoods.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Okay.

         25                 And on the point that Council Member
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          2  Barron was making, that you and I are aware of the

          3  pledge or the appropriation that the Administration

          4  has made in capital funding for CNED, but I wouldn't

          5  raise it because it would be embarrassing to mention

          6  that figure to be matched by a philanthropic

          7  community. Because I think that was just an inkling

          8  to show something. But obviously it's not a figure

          9  that we would want people to think that this is the

         10  Administration's commitment to CNED because it would

         11  be laughable.

         12                 So, I take it as just an indication

         13  of where they want to go as opposed to this is what

         14  we want to do.

         15                 But I think the point is very clear

         16  and very -- you know, in this society, we measure

         17  commitment by money, you know, whether we like it or

         18  not, particularly in government. So, we want that

         19  message to get back as well.

         20                 Thank you for your testimony. You're

         21  right, I've been conferring with you and even prior

         22  to your, with Ester Fuchs, before I knew that you

         23  came aboard, we've been sharing each other's point

         24  of view. So, I have some of her and your concerns in

         25  this bill, as you have a lot of ideas that we
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          2  developed in CNED, and I dare say in the

          3  Commissioner's report.

          4                 We thank you, and we look forward to

          5  hearing from you as quickly as possible.

          6                 MR. SHOBOWALE: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: What I'd like to

          9  do in the interest of focusing in on what the

         10  meeting is about, I'm going to -- okay, I would like

         11  to ask Gail Nayowitz? Did I come close?

         12                 MS. NAYOWITH: Sort of.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Sort of?

         14                 MS. NAYOWITH: It's good enough. I

         15  figured once you halted on the last name, I knew it

         16  was me.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: But I like to get

         18  people's names correct.

         19                 MS. NAYOWITH: The last letter is H,

         20  so it's with.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: It's what?

         22                 MS. NAYOWITH: With. Nayowith.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Nayowith, okay.

         24                 MS. NAYOWITH: I can't explain the

         25  derivation either, so... But if you call me, I'm
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          2  happy to answer.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, welcome.

          4                 Will you give your name and your

          5  title for the record, please?

          6                 MS. NAYOWITH: Yes. Gail Nayowith. I'm

          7  the Executive Director of Citizens' Committee for

          8  Children of New York.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: You may go ahead.

         10                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I wanted to thank

         12  Council Member Vann, and Council Member White, and

         13  all the members of the Economic and Community

         14  Development Committees for this opportunity to

         15  testify on Intro. 346, Community Development Zones.

         16                 For 62 years, Citizens' Committee for

         17  Children of New York has convened, informed, and

         18  mobilized New Yorkers to make New York City a better

         19  place for children.

         20                 We worked very hard to provide you

         21  with the data and information you need to make the

         22  best possible choices for children and families, and

         23  we'll work hard to support you in your decision

         24  making on behalf of the 1.8 million children who

         25  call New York City their home.
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          2                 First off, we're pleased to see

          3  legislation that's focused on improving

          4  opportunities and outcomes for New York City

          5  families.

          6                 The legislation has rightly focused

          7  on concentrating resources geographically to boost

          8  community well-being in targeted neighborhoods that

          9  were not doing as well as other New York City

         10  neighborhoods.

         11                 While economic conditions have

         12  improved overall in the City, progress has been slow

         13  in certain neighborhoods, and uneven across race and

         14  ethnic groups.

         15                 It's more important than ever to

         16  focus on improving economic opportunities for

         17  residents in designated high-rise communities and to

         18  target resources in ways that reduce risk to

         19  well-being.

         20                 We are also pleased to see a growing

         21  consensus around the need to combine place-based and

         22  population-based strategies to combat poor health,

         23  increase academic achievement, and otherwise improve

         24  the life chances of more New Yorkers.

         25                 The dialogue about which
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          2  neighborhoods need this focused attention is very

          3  important, and it's heartening to note the

          4  convergence of interest in doing something about

          5  neighborhoods where risk concentrate.

          6                 In the hardest-pressed neighborhoods,

          7  public services such as good public schools,

          8  accessible health services, sanitation, safety and

          9  amenities, such as pools and playgrounds, are not

         10  always available.

         11                 Further, the local economies do not

         12  support the family life there. Commercial activity

         13  is lacking and prices are high. Many adults are

         14  underemployed, young people are disconnected, high

         15  school dropout rates are high and too many children

         16  are living in poverty.

         17                 Living is simply harder in these

         18  neighborhoods. That these concentrated risks exist

         19  side-by-side with the community's rich human

         20  capital, strengthened vitality, makes it that much

         21  more important to focus our efforts there.

         22                 The proposed legislation aims to make

         23  it easier to live in and easier to do well in

         24  neighborhoods throughout the City.

         25                 Your legislation is an important step

                                                            62

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  in calling attention to disparate conditions in our

          3  City's neighborhoods.

          4                 That said, the detail of the

          5  legislation does not ensure that there will be a

          6  match between what the community needs and the

          7  guarantee of resources to meet those needs, and this

          8  is a significant limitation.

          9                 But it isn't just about money,

         10  although I do agree with Council Member Barron,

         11  money does matter.

         12                 The governance structure proposed to

         13  change the risk opportunity dynamic in these

         14  neighborhoods is unlikely to produce the intended

         15  results.

         16                 The Department of Youth and Community

         17  Development and the Department of Small Business

         18  Services, are very important agencies, but the

         19  services contemplated to be needed to reduce risk

         20  and increase opportunities in these hard-pressed

         21  neighborhoods, are not encompassed in the portfolios

         22  of either agency.

         23                 Further, and no matter how valiantly

         24  attempted, it seems unrealistic to expect a planning

         25  effort headed by Commissioners of two City agencies
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          2  to redirect the program and fiscal priorities of

          3  sister agencies.

          4                 Your legislation is being introduced

          5  at a point of heightened public awareness about an

          6  interest in moving New Yorkers out of poverty.

          7                 To this end, we offer our support and

          8  we encourage you and other members of the City

          9  Council to work with the Mayor as plans are

         10  developed to reduce poverty and increase opportunity

         11  to disadvantaged New Yorkers.

         12                 The time is right, and, frankly, a

         13  rich dialogue is long overdue about identifying

         14  priority neighborhoods, and we have to find the

         15  resources to direct this purpose.

         16                 It's also critical that the Council

         17  and Mayor work to develop legislative priorities and

         18  then join forces to advance them in Albany and

         19  Washington, and we very much look forward to working

         20  with you on this important effort.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Thank you very

         22  much, Gail. I'm glad that you were able to respond

         23  to our invitation. It's good to see you here.

         24                 In addition to being Executive

         25  Director of the Citizens' Committee, as a result of
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          2  that you also served on the Commission, as I

          3  understand it?

          4                 MS. NAYOWITH: I did.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: I guess from that

          6  perspective -- well, before I get to that, you make

          7  a point, which I think is a good point worthy of

          8  exploration, in terms of the governance structure,

          9  the fact that it would be co-led, if you will, by

         10  two Commissioners. And your point is that would be

         11  ineffective or not being productive, I guess. Maybe

         12  I'm putting the wrong words to it. But would you

         13  elaborate on what that would not be a good

         14  structure, or what would be a better governance

         15  structure to accomplish what we want to do?

         16                 MS. NAYOWITH: Well, I think that

         17  there are a number of efforts underway by the

         18  Administration to coordinate services across

         19  agencies, and it's a lot of work groups and planning

         20  efforts underway on the other side of the house

         21  doing that. And many of those are properly led out

         22  of the Mayor's Office. And so that's one big

         23  distinction.

         24                 I think it's just hard for me to

         25  imagine the Commissioners of these agencies doing
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          2  the heavy lifting to really convince their sister

          3  agencies that the priorities that they are sort of

          4  responsible for, perhaps more important than the

          5  ones that the Commissioners might naturally

          6  gravitate on their own.

          7                 So, I guess that the governance

          8  structure is important, because you don't want to

          9  create a community development effort where you are

         10  asking, you have unrealistic expectations of the

         11  Commissioners for delivering the services of other

         12  City agencies. And, so, I don't know what the

         13  replacement mechanism is, because I just looked at

         14  the bill last night and this morning and I need to

         15  do a little bit more work on it, but I think that

         16  there is something there about coordination and

         17  collaboration. I'm just not sure that you guys have

         18  figured it out yet.

         19                 And I didn't want to just, you know,

         20  I didn't want to let the opportunity pass to suggest

         21  there might be another way to figure out how to

         22  leverage the resources of the City agencies that you

         23  need in the neighborhoods that need it the most.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Well, I appreciate

         25  your recommendation. We're looking, we're seeking a
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          2  critique and recommendations, because we know it's

          3  not perfect. We know we're heading in the right

          4  direction, and we're looking for recommendations

          5  such as the ones you presented.

          6                 From your involvement with the

          7  Commission and knowing the inner workings and the

          8  proposed program, as it were, is it anything

          9  inconsistent between what the legislation is

         10  providing for and what the Commission has

         11  recommended?

         12                 MS. NAYOWITH: I think thematically

         13  the focus on neighborhoods is very consistent, and I

         14  think one of the things that I find really

         15  heartening, most heartening about all of this

         16  discussion is an emerging consensus about what the

         17  risk pattern looks like in neighborhoods that need

         18  investments.

         19                 And I think the question of how to

         20  select the priority communities is really still the

         21  open question. And where there is a strong role for

         22  the City Council working with the Mayor, on, you

         23  know, developing the plan and the implementation of

         24  the CEO Commission recommendations.

         25                 Because as I understand the process
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          2  now, the Mayor tasked Deputy Mayor Gibbs with

          3  producing an action plan with timetable and budget

          4  projections and so forth, and so I know that there's

          5  a lot of work beginning on that effort, but I do

          6  think that it's a great time for the Council to

          7  weigh-in.

          8                 I haven't really compared everything

          9  side-by-side because the Commission report is also

         10  very -- it's very undetailed in its recommendation

         11  about place and geography, but I know that there

         12  have been over the last six months very heated

         13  conversations and very enthusiastic conversations

         14  about the need to think about neighborhoods as well

         15  as people.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: In your

         17  deliberations, did you actually deal with the fact

         18  of the other Administration's Initiative, in terms

         19  of CNED, and how that would blend in or relate to or

         20  be a part of, if you will, the Commission's

         21  recommendations.

         22                 MS. NAYOWITH: I guess I just thought

         23  that the CNED project, like many of the other

         24  projects, you know, the reforms as well as the

         25  innovative projects that are underway were going to
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          2  be part of a base of what we would build on, and

          3  maybe that's just an oversight on my part. I assumed

          4  that it would be part and parcel of the larger

          5  initiative, that it would move forward, and that

          6  other things would be companions to that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Okay. But it wasn't

          8  specifically dealt with in the deliberations that

          9  you were part of?

         10                 MS. NAYOWITH: I think people just

         11  assumed that it was a great idea, and that it would

         12  just move forward. That's how I would characterize

         13  it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Since you worked

         15  with Deputy Mayor Gibbs, is there an assumption that

         16  all the poverty-related initiatives should

         17  necessarily fall under the Commission, or do you

         18  think there's room for other efforts to go along

         19  simultaneously?

         20                 MS. NAYOWITH: Well, I can't speak for

         21  the Deputy Mayor, but that's a good thing. But just

         22  as a New Yorker --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Well, just in your

         24  opinion.

         25                 MS. NAYOWITH: In my opinion?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes.

          3                 MS. NAYOWITH: I think that all of the

          4  work that's being done to deal with poverty and

          5  opportunity has to integrate.

          6                 Now, whether it all becomes part of

          7  these recommendations, or whether they move along

          8  the tracks that they're already on, for instance I

          9  think there was a lot of conversation last week

         10  about school reform, and the need to really improve

         11  the educational experience and outcomes for our

         12  youth, because you have to prepare kids to succeed

         13  in the economy and succeed in the future.

         14                 And, so, that wouldn't be subsumed

         15  under the Poverty Commission's work, it would be a

         16  necessary accompaniment.

         17                 And, so, many of the things that are

         18  underway already that were started in the Mayor's

         19  first term and things that were started by the

         20  Council, your own economic -- you know, your own

         21  economic opportunity work and the things that you're

         22  doing with CUNY and your employment initiatives, I

         23  mean I think that all of those have to be

         24  accompaniments to a core focus.

         25                 I mean, the City is a City that is
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          2  incredibly rich in social provision. We have

          3  programs for every problem. We don't always have

          4  them in the right configuration or in the right

          5  places, and so the City can't stop doing its work to

          6  deal with poverty. But we do need a renewed focus on

          7  poverty for certain groups of New Yorkers who were

          8  particularly disadvantaged and who are well

          9  positioned to move out of poverty, as well as

         10  neighborhoods which had not really gotten the

         11  attention they need. So, I think that both of those

         12  things were contemplated in the work.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: And to be most

         14  effective to whoever oversees this work should come

         15  out of the Mayor's Office, at least at that level, I

         16  think that was what you were saying earlier?

         17                 MR. NAYOWITH: Well, what I think, you

         18  know, I just think that it's a lot to ask a City

         19  agency to monitor another City agency's priorities.

         20  I mean, it's never really worked in my experience,

         21  which is not as longstanding as yours, Council

         22  member, but I don't see that as something that's

         23  going to help you get where you want to go.

         24                 I think that the conversations are

         25  necessary at the local level and there has to be
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          2  service coordination and collaboration at the

          3  neighborhood level, no question. But I'm not sure

          4  whether that effort to collaborate and cooperate

          5  generates resources, and that's I think a larger

          6  question for me.

          7                 You know, what we have to see is

          8  either reprogrammed money and reinvested money, new

          9  money to make these initiatives work, because there

         10  are some things that are missing in our communities

         11  that don't now exist, and we have to start to think

         12  a little bit more creatively about how to fill those

         13  steps in to try to help people have an easier life

         14  and a better life.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Right. And finally

         16  for me, do you have an opinion, do you have an

         17  opportunity to review these specific criteria that

         18  we use in our bill, in the zones.

         19                 MS. NAYOWITH: Selecting the

         20  neighborhoods?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes.

         22                 MS. NAYOWITH: Yes. The indicators

         23  that you use are pretty robust. I mean, they're

         24  indicators that we use in keeping track, a data book

         25  on children's wellbeing in the City's 59 community
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          2  districts.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Right.

          4                 MS. NAYOWITH: And they're readily

          5  available through government's validated sources. So

          6  they're robust. And I think the most important thing

          7  about identifying neighborhoods, is that it makes it

          8  possible to begin to stake a claim on resources, and

          9  you know, again, I guess the only other thing that I

         10  would say is, I'm not sure from a needs assessment

         11  perspective that you need a whole lot more

         12  information around the conditions of life for

         13  families who are living in neighborhoods at high

         14  risk.

         15                 I think it might also be useful to

         16  find out what service gaps are there, what other

         17  kind of opportunities are missing. You know, I think

         18  that that might be part of a larger needs

         19  assessment.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Good point.

         21                 MS. NAYOWITH: I have no quarrel with

         22  the data or the indicators.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Right. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you,

         25  Chairman Vann.
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          2                 I'd like to acknowledge the presence

          3  of -- he must have stepped out, Council Member

          4  McMahon, the presence of Council Member Tish James

          5  and Council Member Felder.

          6                 You mentioned that there are some

          7  gaps. There are gaps in addressing the issue. You

          8  alluded to there's a lot that needs to be done.

          9  There are gaps. Could you identify to some degree

         10  what those gaps are?

         11                 MS. NAYOWITH: Well, for instance,

         12  there is a tremendous need for child care, to help

         13  families work. And I think the numbers that people

         14  were talking about last week were 50,000 children on

         15  a waiting list for subsidized child care.

         16                 You know, I'm sure that for many of

         17  those children their parents have made alternative

         18  arrangements and they could go to work, but they're

         19  very unstable and very unreliable, and so that's a

         20  major issue, for instance, if you want to help

         21  families go to work and earn a living and do well.

         22  So, that's a piece. And so you have to look at the

         23  neighborhoods that you all targeted to figure out

         24  what the child care gaps might be there.

         25                 For instance, there are other gaps,
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          2  the number of young people who drop out of high

          3  school, disconnected youth, those are estimates that

          4  could also be made in the neighborhoods that you

          5  identify in your bill.

          6                 You can see that I'm sort of tracking

          7  along with the population groups that were

          8  identified in the CEO report. Young children zero to

          9  five, disconnected youth 16 to 24, and I could sort

         10  of do the same thing with working families. But

         11  there is data that suggests some very significant

         12  work family gaps for low-income, hard-working New

         13  Yorkers. Child care is just one of them. Access to

         14  good schools. Health care. Access to nutritious

         15  affordable food. There are lots of gaps in our

         16  neighborhoods that have to be kind of worked out.

         17  Some of those, some of them have social services

         18  implications like child care, others like access to

         19  affordable nutritious food, are really in the

         20  private marketplace and that's a commercial

         21  activity.

         22                 There are also issues around jobs,

         23  significant issues around jobs and the kind of jobs

         24  that are available and the ways that we move people

         25  closer to the labor market, what kind of training
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          2  and work readiness programs and educational

          3  opportunities are there for people to move New

          4  Yorkers who are not in the labor market close to the

          5  labor market, move people into the labor market, and

          6  move people up in the labor market so that they can,

          7  you know, live, work and raise their kids in New

          8  York, and it's not an inexpensive city to live in

          9  for families, and we want to make the City a place

         10  that's great for all kids and all families

         11  regardless of their income so we have to fill the

         12  gaps. And we would love to work with you to do that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: You know, the

         14  reason why I asked you that, I believe that Council

         15  Member Barron said, in effect, we'll throw money at

         16  it, at the problem. Based on your study and your

         17  research and you used the figure, I'll just use it,

         18  50,000 child care slots, if we were to take a look

         19  at the existing budget and see how many child care

         20  slots we have in that budget, and see whether or not

         21  there is 50,000, there's an amount of money in their

         22  target for the areas that Chairman Vann mentioned,

         23  or wherever the 50,000 child care slots are, that

         24  that money should be targeted towards that group.

         25  Would that help?
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          2                 MS. NAYOWITH: Well, there's a lot of

          3  child care in the City's low-income working

          4  communities because the eligibility for a subsidized

          5  child care is that you have to be low income or

          6  poor. If you receive welfare you can get child care,

          7  and if you worked up to a certain income, you can

          8  get a subsidy to help you. But there are about

          9  50,000 kids whose parents are income eligible for

         10  subsidies who can't now take advantage of a subsidy

         11  because the subsidy money isn't there.

         12                 And the City has a long history of

         13  providing very generously through the Council and on

         14  the Mayor's side for many, many years, since the

         15  sixties, child care disproportionate to the money

         16  that we get from the State and federal government.

         17                 So, you guys have done a terrific job

         18  but we don't have enough. And if you want to flip a

         19  neighborhood and you want to give opportunity to

         20  everybody who lives there, you have to give child

         21  care. Child care has to be available. Safe,

         22  affordable, quality child care has to be available.

         23                 Setting aside my child advocate role

         24  around the need to get kids ready for school, and

         25  keep them safe which is obviously an underpinning of
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          2  everything that we advocate for, parents can't work

          3  without child care. It's plain and simple, it just

          4  can't be done. And employers, whether it's Trader

          5  Joes or anybody else, doesn't want to hire somebody

          6  who is not going to show up, or who has a child who

          7  has unreliable child care arrangements, an employer

          8  counseling people showing up. And, so, it means

          9  transportation and child care and other work

         10  supports that we have to make sure are available in

         11  our neighborhoods, because that is what's going to

         12  help move people from poverty to self-sufficiency or

         13  economic independence, or we like to say economic

         14  security.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         16                 Now, you mentioned disconnected

         17  youth, that's 16 to 24, and that includes the high

         18  school dropouts.

         19                 MS. NAYOWITH: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Now, just on a

         21  theory, if nothing happens for that segment of the

         22  population, where do they wind up?

         23                 MS. NAYOWITH: Let's see, well, we

         24  export a lot of our young people to shelters,

         25  prison, the streets, many disconnected youth are
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          2  working how they say off the books. You know, in

          3  various forms. Some in legal activity, some in

          4  illegal activity. I mean, people need to earn a

          5  living, right? And so you've got to do what you have

          6  to do to take care of yourself and your family. But

          7  often our young people who are undercredentialed and

          8  who don't have access to jobs or education or the

          9  right diplomas don't do well, and that's not good.

         10  And that's just not good. We lose a whole generation

         11  of young New Yorkers in the prime of their life. And

         12  that's when everybody starts to learn about the

         13  world of work. I mean, at 16, you know, you start to

         14  learn about the world of work. By the time you're

         15  24, you will have had a couple of jobs. It's easier

         16  to accept the kind of -- how can I say, unpolished

         17  behavior of a 16 year old in a work situation than

         18  it is for a 24 year old.

         19                 And, so, we need to figure out how to

         20  direct our young people into opportunities that are

         21  going to give them a good life, and we have to do a

         22  better job than we've been doing then because there

         23  is not much out there for them that's very positive.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I'd like to

         25  acknowledge the presence of another colleague, David
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          2  Weprin, who has joined us.

          3                 See, do you have a percentage between

          4  16 and 24 who wind up in penal institutions?

          5                 MS. NAYOWITH: I don't off the top of

          6  my head. We can get back to you about that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes. You know why?

          8  Because as Chairman Vann, this Initiative, you know,

          9  and we don't have the money in the budget, we don't

         10  have a distinct amount of money to go into this

         11  program, money goes into another program whether we

         12  like it or not and that's the penal institution.

         13                 So, it is costing the taxpayers over

         14  the long haul if we don't come up with the resources

         15  to address the poverty issue. I mean, it only make

         16  sense, pay now or pay later.

         17                 MS. NAYOWITH: I agree.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: But we will pay.

         19                 MS. NAYOWITH: I agree.

         20                 I mean, you all are partners with the

         21  Mayor in developing a budget. You know, the Mayor

         22  sets the ceiling and the floor and there's a lot of

         23  room in between to make adjustments and to negotiate

         24  off line and on line, and you know, we do the budget

         25  discussion every year and we see you on the steps
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          2  every year, and I think it's really critically

          3  important because poverty is such a critically

          4  important issue for us now in the public

          5  conversation that there is a real opening to figure

          6  out how to do a better job.

          7                 Now, it's hard for you all, or even

          8  for the Mayor, to talk about significant

          9  reinvestments from corrections when, for instance,

         10  the State operates prisons, right? That's not money

         11  that you guys can access.

         12                 But I do think that it's important if

         13  there are focused initiatives, such as the ones that

         14  are being proposed by the Commission of Economic

         15  Opportunity and are being worked on now. I think

         16  that many of those initiatives are going to land

         17  squarely in the middle of this problem for

         18  disconnected youth, and move young people into a

         19  better life and a life where they're not poor.

         20                 Now, I have to believe that. Now,

         21  granted, like Council Member Vann, now there's

         22  something that's aspirational and highly ridiculous

         23  about thinking how you can eradicate poverty, but

         24  you have to believe it's possible or you don't try.

         25  So, I guess for myself, you know, I'll squander what

                                                            81

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  little influence and political capital and

          3  intelligence I have on trying to solve a problem

          4  that affects so many New Yorkers, and if we can, in

          5  fact, move 700,000 New Yorkers further away from

          6  poverty and into economic security, then I'll feel

          7  like I did something really important with my life.

          8                 And, so, I guess what I would say

          9  about the young people is we really can't afford to

         10  lose young men and women. They're in the prime of

         11  their life. It's the prime years to learn how to

         12  work and get jobs. It's the years when many young

         13  people begin their own parenting and they have their

         14  own children, and so we have to break the cycle of

         15  poverty and move people out of poverty into

         16  employment.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Do any of my

         18  colleagues have any questions?

         19                 Chairman Vann.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes, I'll wind up.

         21                 I do believe that poverty can be

         22  eradicated, by the way. In fact, that's my mission.

         23  That is why for the last three years I've been

         24  working on this bill and similar involvement with

         25  the Administration.
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          2                 Now, I know that poverty will not be

          3  eradicated in my lifetime. But I think that should

          4  be the goal, and I think we should have strategies

          5  to lead towards that, and reduce it as much as we

          6  can significantly as we move forward. So, I just

          7  wanted to make that clarification, and I think that

          8  the Mayor has a similar vision, I believe. I have to

          9  believe that. And I think now that he has put

         10  himself on the world stage that he's going to reduce

         11  poverty significantly, and he's come up with a plan

         12  and a study and commission, I think now the

         13  Administration has to go the second step. They have

         14  to show that their serious about that by putting

         15  some money out there. You don't have to throw it. We

         16  can put it in strategically, but it's got to be

         17  money if we're going to really do that. Because the

         18  problem with poor people, they don't have any money.

         19  And, so, we have to find ways for them to do that in

         20  the system, so they can get jobs, they can own

         21  businesses, they can, you know, whatever.

         22                 And, see, the beauty of this

         23  legislation, as far as I'm concerned, is both

         24  economic development and human services, and it

         25  recognizes that it has to be child care and it's got
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          2  to be other kinds of support, because people have

          3  been in poverty so long, they have internalized a

          4  lot of things that work against them becoming an

          5  employer or employable.

          6                 So, we recognize that. So, we've got

          7  to create the jobs and make -- like your Commission

          8  Report, you recognize there's some people that can

          9  become employed right away, but then you're also

         10  dealing with the future. You said we've got to deal

         11  with zero to five, and make sure that they get off

         12  to a, quote, a head start. And at the same time

         13  you're dealing with the working poor. It's going to

         14  be some work there, all right? And more work with

         15  the seven, the 16, the 24. A lot of things they've

         16  got to do to make sure they come into, you know, the

         17  main stream, so on and so forth.

         18                 So, I think, you know, we have a lot

         19  of the things going, and I think you suggested that

         20  the Commission ought to be big enough in this

         21  implementation to take the best of everything --

         22                 MS. NAYOWITH: Of course.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: And to make the

         24  best model possible.

         25                 MS. NAYOWITH: Absolutely.
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          2                 And I join you in your work to

          3  eradicate poverty. And as I tell people, it doesn't

          4  matter how aspirational and ridiculous it sounds,

          5  you've got to do it anyway.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Got to do it.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 What I'm going to ask is that we're

         12  going to break into a panel and I'm going to call

         13  upon the following individuals, Kevin Alexander,

         14  Colvin Grannum and Rudy Bryant. Will you kindly take

         15  a seat, please?

         16                 For the purpose of clarity, could you

         17  identify yourselves, please?

         18                 MR. GRANNUM: Okay, Colvin W. Grannum.

         19  President of Bedford Stuyvesant Restoration, in

         20  Council Member Vann's district, and I had the honor

         21  of participating on the Mayor's Commission for

         22  Economic Opportunity as well.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Welcome.

         24                 MR. ALEXANDER: My name is Kevin

         25  Alexander. I am the Executive Director of the
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          2  Rockaway Development and Revitalization Corporation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Welcome.

          4                 MR. BRYANT: Hi. I'm Rudy Bryant,

          5  Associate Director for the Pratt Center for

          6  Community Development, and member of the staff

          7  that's been working with the CNED program.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Welcome.

          9                 Okay, you gentlemen have testimony?

         10                 MR. GRANNUM: Yes, I do. I think we

         11  all do.

         12                 Would you like me to proceed?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes, please.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes, with the

         15  understanding we're not profiling, it just worked

         16  out this way.

         17                 MR. GRANNUM: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: You got it?

         19                 MR. GRANNUM: No, I didn't. All right.

         20  It feels like it though.

         21                 Well, I have some written testimony,

         22  maybe you would just like me to hit the highlights

         23  of that?

         24                 Okay, well, I guess the first thing

         25  I'd like to say is -- well, I'd just like to
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          2  familiarize you generally with Bedford Stuyvesant

          3  Restoration Corporation, which is a community

          4  development corporation that's 40 years old and that

          5  has been providing a range of services in the

          6  community from arts and culture to workforce

          7  development to commercial lending, residential

          8  lending, home ownership, a variety of efforts to

          9  reverse blight in urban areas, as well as to

         10  eradicate poverty. We put our work in two baskets,

         11  and one is called "place development." I thank the

         12  Council and the members of the Council who are

         13  supportive of Intro. 346, for sharpening the City's

         14  focus on overcoming poverty, and I'm pleased to say

         15  that I've had an opportunity to work with Councilman

         16  Vann in a number of contexts on these kinds of

         17  issues.

         18                 Bedford Stuyvesant, as many of you

         19  know, is a place where approximately 38 percent of

         20  the people live in poverty and 70 percent of the

         21  children live in poverty, and this is while the

         22  community is also becoming one of the most ethically

         23  diverse, growing increasingly diverse, in terms of

         24  racial, ethnic and economic diversity.

         25                 In Bedford Stuyvesant it's not
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          2  surprising to learn that a one-, two-, or

          3  three-family home has been sold for a price that

          4  approaches or exceeds a million dollars. And yet,

          5  the concentration of poverty continues to exist in

          6  this City where there's a boom in construction,

          7  there's record profits on Wall Street, and the

          8  private sector is creating new jobs.

          9                 From our perspective, the challenge

         10  ahead is, quite frankly, to assist people in full

         11  participation in the economy and then to connect

         12  them to the economy. And as we talk about

         13  aspirations, I think the aspiration should not just

         14  be to lift people out of poverty, but as a City we

         15  should be committed to transforming our workforce

         16  into the most, one of the most well-qualified

         17  workforces in the world.

         18                 The presence of a well-qualified

         19  workforce will attract more business and more jobs.

         20                 I think we are also fortunate to have

         21  a mayor who believes in the development of human

         22  capital, and perhaps that's based in part on his

         23  background of having run a major corporate

         24  enterprise.

         25                 You're familiar with the Commission's

                                                            88

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  report, you know that report targets -- has as a

          3  principle the targeting of populations and the

          4  targeting of geographies. And as the prior

          5  Commission member who testified stated the

          6  identification of those communities and how they

          7  would be identified has not yet been determined.

          8                 I've also had the privilege to work

          9  with the Administration on what you've heard

         10  referred to as the "comprehensive neighborhood

         11  economic development initiative, which has been

         12  launched in Bedford Stuyvesant and they're serving

         13  it, and the Bedford Stuyvesant is serving it as a

         14  pilot community. And what we call CNED, is an effort

         15  to coordinate public agencies, not-for-profits and

         16  philanthropy in achieving goals in an area of

         17  workforce development, asset building and what we

         18  call business vitality.

         19                 We think that those are the three

         20  linchpins that form the basis for a platform on

         21  which people can be lifted out of poverty.

         22                 And the goal is to assist residents

         23  in lifting themselves out of poverty by finding

         24  gainful and sustainable employment and managing

         25  their resources so that they may acquire assets that
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          2  will keep them from falling back into poverty.

          3                 I will quickly say that the effort to

          4  overcome poverty, at least our effort as a City,

          5  should be no less sophisticated than our effort to

          6  fight and reduce crime.

          7                 We've got the most advanced

          8  technology. We know where the hot spots are in

          9  crime, we know where the hot spots are in terms of

         10  poverty. We know that crime and poverty are related.

         11  So, the same kind of technology, the same kind of

         12  willpower, the same kind of commitment is what we

         13  need to fight poverty or overcome poverty.

         14                 I hope we get beyond fighting it to

         15  overcoming it.

         16                 So, in terms of your bill, what I

         17  would say is, I'm very supportive. I think it's

         18  moving in the right direction because it calls for

         19  coordination and it calls for targeting and it calls

         20  for the, you know, additional resources.

         21                 What I would say about the criteria,

         22  and the Councilman asked that before earlier, I'm in

         23  agreement with the criteria. I really don't know too

         24  many communities where there is high levels of

         25  poverty without also low educational attainment and
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          2  for health outcomes. It's conceivable that there are

          3  some, I just don't know them.

          4                 But what I like about your criteria

          5  is that they are what I would consider to be indicia

          6  of structural poverty. And structural poverty is

          7  really what we're after.

          8                 There are some people who are

          9  temporarily poor, some immigrant groups who are

         10  temporarily unemployed. But we're not talking about

         11  that, I don't think. We're talking about places

         12  where they're generational structures that

         13  perpetuate poverty, and bringing the public sector

         14  resources and other resources to fight that

         15  condition.

         16                 The other thing that I would point

         17  out, in terms of Section 24-804 is the community

         18  development zoned board.

         19                 I can clearly see potential benefits

         20  from the Board. On the other hand, I think we ought

         21  to guard against the creation of an additional

         22  bureaucracy. It might be more effective to charge

         23  the Mayor with making progress in the area of

         24  eliminating poverty and allowing him the discretion

         25  to establish the appropriate infrastructure for
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          2  doing so.

          3                 Likewise, I think that the Mayor

          4  ought to be the Chair of the Board, rather than

          5  Commissioners. Commissioners, any Commissioner that

          6  you would designate will need the full support of

          7  the Mayor, so it strikes me that the accountability

          8  should be at the Mayoral level at any event. It's

          9  pretty difficult to work with somebody who doesn't

         10  necessarily share your key priorities. So, I think

         11  we should just suggest that those priorities be the

         12  priorities of the Mayor himself, and that we should

         13  establish numerical goals.

         14                 Numerical goals are not established

         15  in the Commission's report. The language is

         16  significant reduction in poverty. And it strikes me

         17  that like fighting crime, there's got to be some

         18  numerical targets. The management tools that are

         19  used in Corporate America were brought to crime. The

         20  management tools that are being used in fighting

         21  crime are to be brought to eradicating poverty.

         22                 And so, essentially that's the

         23  substance of my testimony, and I appreciate the

         24  opportunity to share it with you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Just before we go

          3  on, I just want to make one point of clarification,

          4  because we're very much attuned to the Mayor being

          5  responsible, if you will, and accountable for this.

          6  But within the purview of the Council, based on the

          7  law, both the -- what do we call it? Charter -- we

          8  don't have the authority to mandate that the Mayor

          9  do A, B, C and D. The closest we can come to it is

         10  what we did.

         11                 But we agree with you, the buck

         12  should stop at the Mayor's Office and that should be

         13  cleared of legislation. This is as clear and as

         14  close as we could get in terms of the Charter. I

         15  appreciate your seeing that point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you

         17  for your comments.

         18                 Mr. Alexander.

         19                 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes. I will just

         20  summarize my testimony.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Oh, excuse me for

         22  one moment. I'd like to acknowledge the presence of

         23  my colleague, Council Member Yassky.

         24                 Continue.

         25                 MR. ALEXANDER: Sure.
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          2                 Instead of saying Rockaway

          3  Development Revitalization Corporation numerous

          4  times, I will just refer to the acronym, RDRC.

          5                 RDRC is a 28-year-old Community

          6  Development Corporation located in Far Rockaway. Our

          7  mission is to promote the revitalization of the

          8  Rockaway Community's business and economic base and

          9  assist residents in obtaining an improved quality of

         10  life.

         11                 Basically we do this through four

         12  different modes, one, we look at our human capital

         13  as the greatest asset that we have, and we

         14  continually try and develop that through job

         15  placement, job training, job retention, a lot of

         16  prescreening, a lot of roleplay with them, to get

         17  them familiar with what to expect when they do enter

         18  in the workforce.

         19                 One of the greatest problems that

         20  we're having right now is although RDRC's mission

         21  might be more economically development based, the

         22  social needs of the population that we're serving

         23  are overwhelming and very costly, and do impact on

         24  the bottom line which are numbers that we have to

         25  hit. Whether you're talking with small business
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          2  services, whether you're talking with the NYC Works

          3  Program, it impacts our numbers because, again, the

          4  needs are so great and the resources are so few that

          5  we're spreading out.

          6                 Collectively, in Fiscal Year 2006,

          7  RDRC touched over 8,000 persons in the Rockaway

          8  Community. It sounds like a big number but it's only

          9  less than eight percent of the total population, and

         10  because of the high concentration of needs, again

         11  it's not enough.

         12                 We believe that the creation of a

         13  community development zone will give RDRC and our

         14  sister community-based organization, the opportunity

         15  to leverage resources working in partnership with

         16  the City.

         17                 We do have concerns over the

         18  creation, the possible creation of another layer of

         19  bureaucracy but we're committed to the concept of

         20  creating a community development zone.

         21                 The other thing that I am concerned

         22  about is when we look at community district

         23  profiles. I used to work for HRA some years ago, and

         24  part of my role was creating the information that

         25  are in the 59 community district profiles.
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          2                 Sometimes when you look at an

          3  individual census track it can be massed within the

          4  broader context of the community district, because

          5  the numbers can be so extreme. So my concern as

          6  always, the ability to really see what the needs are

          7  within the community district because of the great

          8  needs that can be skewed with those that do have.

          9                 The concern also is that not just

         10  RDRC, not just the Rockaways, but many areas, there

         11  almost is the Tale of Two Cities within the City.

         12                 Within the borough, within even the

         13  community district. So, the concern I have is when

         14  we do look at, when we do evaluate which zones will

         15  be selected, again we have to go a little bit

         16  further than by just what the community district

         17  profile is reporting to us.

         18                 It really does require looking at the

         19  census track data to see what's in that. And in my

         20  case, for instance, RDRC, within several of our

         21  zones, we could have a median income, family income

         22  of 59,000 right next to and adjoining a census track

         23  with a median income of only 15,000. And that's a

         24  real statistic that we have and it's based on, I

         25  hope EDC is still here. I'm using their statistics
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          2  out of Census 2000. That's there. So, those are some

          3  of the concerns we have.

          4                 The other concern that was mentioned

          5  was basically we want not money thrown at us, I mean

          6  that's always a great thing, but to take this

          7  endeavor on, we need a commitment of resources. I

          8  just don't mean capital. I also mean operating. In

          9  order to do something like this, it has to be a

         10  commitment, and the question I have will be is the

         11  Commissioners that are sitting on the board

         12  dedicated to allocating some of their budget to

         13  endeavors such as this?

         14                 I don't have the answer to the

         15  question, but that is a question that I have because

         16  that will be up to them if they're participants in

         17  this project.

         18                 The other thing is basically the will

         19  and the commitment to this. If it's something that's

         20  forced upon, then the question I will have is are

         21  they going to execute. Because obviously this can't

         22  happen in just one year. This has to happen over a

         23  period of time, and if it becomes somebody else's

         24  priority, or doesn't become somebody else's

         25  priority, where is the commitment at and where will
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          2  the resources go.

          3                 So, those are some of the concerns

          4  that we have as RDRC, and I do speak on behalf of

          5  the other CBOs who I do interact with on a regular

          6  basis. And that basically summarizes my testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 Mr. Bryant.

         10                 MR. BRYANT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         11  Thank you all for this opportunity to address you on

         12  what we think is a very critical issue and to

         13  present this testimony.

         14                 I am from the Pratt Center for

         15  Community Development and since 1963 we have been

         16  working with low- and moderate-income communities

         17  throughout the City of New York, to help families,

         18  individuals, groups and organizations in those

         19  communities to decide and define their own futures.

         20                 We'd like to acknowledge the Mayor's

         21  courage here to undertake the task of reducing

         22  poverty.

         23                 We think this could, in fact, define

         24  his legacy for the future, given the progress we're

         25  able to make on the remaining term in his office.
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          2                 We also welcome the Commission on

          3  Economic Opportunity's report. But in reading that

          4  report, it kind of left us with the question, you

          5  know, where do we go from here? And we're grateful

          6  that the City Council has stepped into what we

          7  thought was the gap to begin to define a structural

          8  framework for how to govern and to move forward on

          9  the set of ideas and challenges that the Commission

         10  Report lays forward.

         11                 Nevertheless, we understand the

         12  Commission's desire to target specific populations.

         13  Young children, young adults and the working poor.

         14                 We think, though, that kind of misses

         15  some of the opportunity and concern about how the

         16  poverty is aligned in the City and where the

         17  resources are and assets are to address it, and that

         18  is looking specifically at neighborhoods and

         19  communities.

         20                 We propose that the Council proposal

         21  to create community development zones would be a

         22  critical endeavor in changing and dealing with this

         23  issue of life of targeting and we think the

         24  community development approach is a good way to do

         25  this.
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          2                 We specifically have several kinds of

          3  recommendations around Intro 346 that we'd like to

          4  talk about.

          5                 The first of these is with regard to

          6  the purpose statement itself. And we have no

          7  argument with the purposes that are articulated, but

          8  we think this is an opportunity to really challenge

          9  City agencies to take a look at their own practices,

         10  and the potential conflicts in their rules,

         11  regulations and practices around things that would

         12  block families and individuals being able to share

         13  and accumulate assets as we try and reduce poverty.

         14                 We certainly recognize that both

         15  federal and State policies may also have practices

         16  that could block and impede or frustrate the

         17  opportunity to help folks move out of poverty and so

         18  looking at stuff like asset accumulation and

         19  eligibility for food stamps and trying to reduce

         20  some of the conflict there would be helpful.

         21                 Working on the issue of removing the

         22  barriers to employment for ex-offenders and

         23  particularly where the State legislation actually

         24  prohibits individuals from working in certain jobs

         25  and occupations. So, those kinds of coordinations we
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          2  think are absolutely essential and would like to see

          3  the Council challenge the Administration to

          4  undertake a review of public policies and programs

          5  to try and eliminate those kinds of conflicts.

          6                 Secondly, to build on Mr. Alexander's

          7  point here, the Commission's report can -- from it

          8  you can infer that there is a recognition of the

          9  conditions and circumstances of people who are

         10  living in public housing in the City. We'd like to

         11  make that a whole lot more explicit, that the

         12  problems of poverty are concentrated in public

         13  housing.  An attempt to reduce poverty in this City

         14  ought to speak to public housing more specifically

         15  and more directly.

         16                 In fact, when we look at defining the

         17  zones and what areas might be included and districts

         18  would be included in zones, we could identify some

         19  community districts that because of their rapid

         20  gentrification, et cetera, would not qualify based

         21  on the things that we have identified, and I agree

         22  with the criteria.

         23                 But they have public housing campuses

         24  within them, where if you look just at those public

         25  housing campuses and perhaps a couple of blocks
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          2  right around them, they would in fact qualify. So,

          3  we would ask you to include public housing as a

          4  specific set of potential zones and whether that

          5  means expanding a district zone to include public

          6  housing where the zone, the district that it is in

          7  doesn't qualify to do that.

          8                 Secondly, we would argue that the

          9  Chief Executive of NYCHA ought to be on the

         10  governance board so that he or she can be there to

         11  assist with planning and carrying out a program.

         12                 Third, given that we do believe that

         13  communities are important partners in this, district

         14  managers of community boards we think should also

         15  be, if not actual members of the governance board,

         16  they should at least be ex-officio members so that

         17  they can sit and plan and help to coordinate the

         18  things that are going to go on back in the district.

         19                 We looked at some of the issues that

         20  the Council has identified, the Committee has

         21  identified in the bill, around the challenges for

         22  human service needs and economic development needs,

         23  and we would have you add financial literacy as one

         24  for human service needs.

         25                 And first source agreements, and you
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          2  know that first source agreements are about insuring

          3  that local people are hired where there are public

          4  funds employed to create development that local

          5  people are hired in some of those jobs, that there

          6  be a first source agreement and micro enterprise

          7  development be added to the list of priorities from

          8  the economic development and small business side.

          9                 Then with regard to planning, the

         10  Intro. 346, we think should have in paragraph 21-805

         11  and 21-806 some additional linkage to community

         12  districts annual needs statement, and also wherever

         13  they exist, 197-A plans.

         14                 These are places that the local

         15  community articulate what they think needs to happen

         16  in those communities, and therefore, if we're going

         17  to have a coordinated effort on a Citywide basis, to

         18  reduce poverty in communities and districts, we

         19  ought to at least look at and see and coordinate

         20  with and begin from the point of view that the folks

         21  in those local communities articulate that they'd

         22  like to see different.

         23                 And finally, now that the Mayor has

         24  embarked on this path, and notwithstanding

         25  Councilman Vann's comment a little bit earlier about
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          2  the Committee having articulated as far as it can go

          3  in terms of directing the Administration on how to

          4  organize itself with regard to this, now that the

          5  Mayor has embarked on this path of trying to reduce

          6  poverty, we believe that he should be exhorted,

          7  encouraged, supported, to use all of his stature and

          8  prestige to bring to the table business and

          9  corporate leaders to assist in this effort as well.

         10                 I think that we are at a unique

         11  period in history that we have a Mayor who comes out

         12  of a corporate sector and is well respected there,

         13  that he is a billionaire and has billionaires as his

         14  friends, we're in an economic climate where just

         15  yesterday the Dow approached a new level of 11,680,

         16  that there is wealth in this City that may not have

         17  been here in quite the same way as before, and that

         18  this is a time when, excuse the analogy, that if the

         19  Mayor will call together a roundtable, he could

         20  certainly be a White Knight to help bring corporate

         21  assistance to this issue of trying to solve the

         22  problems of poverty in the City at this time.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Chairman Vann.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes, thank you fine

          4  gentlemen for your presence and your testimony, it's

          5  all very helpful.

          6                 Just a couple of key sort of

          7  foundation questions. Earlier there was discussion

          8  about money, you know, how the government, the

          9  Administration throws money this way, that way, so

         10  forth and so forth, but it raises a question. The

         11  planning is obviously necessary, and you've got to

         12  have a strategy, you've got to have a plan, and

         13  that's good for us.

         14                 But bottom line is there has to be

         15  resources. And I guess my question to you is

         16  something, some money should have been set aside and

         17  can you do the planning and so forth, not trying to

         18  start a debate, but when, at what point should it be

         19  apparent that there is a strong commitment to this

         20  because money is indeed available, and from your

         21  view from the community, how would you like to see

         22  and how much -- well, that's a difficult question,

         23  how would you like to see those resources made

         24  available.

         25                 You know, it's a general question,
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          2  but maybe you could make sense of it, whoever wants

          3  to respond to that.

          4                 MR. ALEXANDER: Okay, being fairly new

          5  to the Rockaways, as the Executive Director one of

          6  the things I have seen, or have not seen is

          7  commitment to the development of the infrastructure,

          8  infrastructure in order to provide the services.

          9                 My biggest issue has always been when

         10  you have a high concentration, and in particular the

         11  Rockaways, because of the isolation, when I

         12  continually have to tell my constituents they have

         13  to go to the main area in Southeastern Queens versus

         14  having it here, I lose a percentage of my population

         15  right there.

         16                 What I think they're looking to see

         17  is the same type of commitment the City is making

         18  with the Arverne Renewal Plan, when they're working

         19  with developers, they're working with contractors to

         20  develop the area, to also commit to the residents

         21  that are there in concentrated areas, such as the

         22  Housing Authority. I believe we have six within an

         23  eight-mile square radius, the commitment of

         24  infrastructure and resources to them, the same as

         25  the developments going on in Arverne renewal plan.
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          2  That's when the community will believe it.

          3                 I also think that in terms of I guess

          4  how it's administered, my thought has always been

          5  that you have to work as a partnership, the

          6  community-based development corporation such as RDRC

          7  have been around for years. They're not going

          8  anywhere. They have the capacity to manage and

          9  report and be responsible to fund. Let them

         10  coordinate the same way we would coordinate in an

         11  empire zone. We're responsible. We have to report on

         12  how we used it, what we used it on and present that.

         13                 I think that's when the community

         14  will believe that the resources are there. They have

         15  to see it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Before you answer,

         17  just let me sort of rephrase too.

         18                 Okay, there is a plan to reduce

         19  property. There has been a commission, they're

         20  coming out with a report, they've got

         21  recommendations, that should lead to an

         22  implementation plan if you will.

         23                 You've got CNED. You've begun already

         24  the collaboration between the City agencies and

         25  they're interfacing with our community leadership,
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          2  and only a modicum of money has been put forward

          3  thus far, in terms of the City's commitment to this

          4  pilot. We won't even mention the amount because it's

          5  not important, it's not relevant, it's so small,

          6  okay?

          7                 Legislation that I am advancing, I've

          8  been very careful not really to deal with money

          9  because when I recognize that it's going to be -- if

         10  you're going to get help for the areas that need it

         11  the most, you've got to make sure that those who

         12  already have don't feel it's going to come from

         13  them. Politically it never happened. It's got to be,

         14  got to like hold them harmless as they say. What

         15  we've been getting we're going to get. So, you can

         16  deal with them, if you're talking about some more

         17  money, some new money, but you're not going to take

         18  some of my money over in my district to help this

         19  district over here, no matter how poor, how

         20  destitute, they don't want, politically, you know,

         21  they don't want to hear it, right? And, so, I guess

         22  everyone is mindful of that.

         23                 But can you restructure and

         24  reorganize and collaborate and coordinate and bring

         25  people out of poverty without new or additional
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          2  resources? And when should that become apparent in

          3  this whole scheme of things?

          4                 Mr. Grannum, you're a smart guy.

          5  Answer.

          6                 MR. GRANNUM: You know, I'm not going

          7  to argue against more money, but I will say this: I

          8  think that investment will follow a plan and new

          9  thinking. I just don't believe and I know for a fact

         10  that in the City money is not the issue. The issue

         11  is ensuring the development of a plan that's

         12  coordinated and focused. And I do believe that there

         13  are efficiencies to be gained from reorganization

         14  and coordination and focus.

         15                 So, I would say that while the new

         16  money is not yet apparent, I believe it will be

         17  forthcoming, if the quality of the planning, if the

         18  focus and the commitment is there. I really do

         19  believe that. I believe we know in the City that

         20  there is a lot of money that's untapped, and some of

         21  it is sitting on the sidelines so we don't believe

         22  that we can create productive vehicles for

         23  transformation, and I think if we work on crafting

         24  that, whether it's identifying programs that have a

         25  record of success or bringing them expertise or
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          2  whatever it may be, I think setting that platform is

          3  a necessary prerequisite.

          4                 MR. GRANNUM: I certainly agree that

          5  money should not be the issue in this locale. I

          6  think the real issue is leadership. That we have the

          7  opportunity to create the political will, moral

          8  suasion if you will, to channel the resources that

          9  are in the City into this effort. I think a good

         10  plan is necessary, but a plan without a man to carry

         11  it out won't work either. And, so, it really is an

         12  issue for me of is there leadership who is willing

         13  to say that this is what we need to do at this

         14  particular point in time, and we're going to put the

         15  accountability mechanisms in place so that this does

         16  not succumb to corruption, and I think it can

         17  happen.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Right, thank you.

         19  And further on that point, one of the things that we

         20  have observed about this Mayor is that even though

         21  the problem that affect City residents new origin

         22  may be state or federal, as in case, poverty is one

         23  of the major problems where we have more people

         24  that's increasing in New York City is because they

         25  eliminated the public assistance program. The direct
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          2  correlation. They are not getting the benefits

          3  through public assistance, more people are showing

          4  up in poverty, more people are showing up homeless,

          5  you don't have to be no brain surgeon to figure that

          6  out. But the Mayor didn't say, while he didn't say

          7  the problem started here, but they're New Yorkers

          8  and so we have to do something. See, I appreciate

          9  that attitude and I hope the will will be there to

         10  make it work.

         11                 And I think that should be on the

         12  positive side of this Mayor and he'll take on what

         13  can we do to help the citizens of New York City. I'm

         14  sure part of his plan is to go after private money

         15  obviously, and whatever we can get out of federal

         16  and State, and to make the changes that you

         17  recommend, at least to seek to make those changes, I

         18  think that is very, very important.

         19                 The other point I wanted you to

         20  address is, the Mayor's people seem to feel that

         21  just go with the Mayor's plan and we don't need

         22  legislation. He didn't say that directly but he

         23  implied it.

         24                 However, this Mayor is term limited,

         25  as are City Council members. I'm on the last three
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          2  years and four months, right? So, what we set in

          3  motion, in terms of the Economic Opportunities

          4  Commission, or the CNED, who knows what is going to

          5  happen in three years and four months when the

          6  Administration or members come aboard.

          7                 As opposed to having legislation

          8  structure, all right, that a Mayor has to respond

          9  to. Maybe he can neglect it, maybe the City Council

         10  won't let him. You know, at least there is something

         11  there that goes beyond our tenure. So, I was

         12  wondering if you would say a word or two about that.

         13                 MR. ALEXANDER: What I think is so

         14  important about this becoming, this being adopted,

         15  is the fact that it gives groups such as us the

         16  opportunity to leverage when there are

         17  opportunities.

         18                 See, I look at gentrification as,

         19  yes, you can't stop it, but there are opportunities

         20  within it. You have to look at the opportunities and

         21  see what you can leverage. For me, it means that

         22  when I look at, and I can look at a performer on a

         23  project, wherever, whatever it is, I can look at and

         24  say I can reduce your cost because I have X, Y, Z. I

         25  go back to the human capital I think we all
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          2  discussed, and if I have a pool of human capital

          3  that is trained, that can assist you in development,

          4  I can reduce your operating cost.

          5                 There are other things that we can do

          6  because, for instance, we have this relationship

          7  with the City in terms of, as it relates to project

          8  costs. There are abatements, there are Land Use

          9  issues that we can do, we can expedite, there is

         10  leverage in having that.

         11                 So that even though there are term

         12  limits, having that leverage there that you can

         13  bring something to the table as a community

         14  development organization makes you valuable. And

         15  that's what's so important to us. So, we're looking

         16  at the opportunity to be able to participate and

         17  leverage that so we can go forward.

         18                 The reality is this: I think there

         19  was a period of time when community groups waited

         20  for the money to come. I think they have gotten more

         21  sophisticated, and what they're saying now is, we'll

         22  let you catch up to us. And I say that as a

         23  positive, not as a negative, we'll wait for you to

         24  catch up to us, but we have to go forward, because

         25  the bottom line is we're the stakeholders, we're in
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          2  the community, we're not picking the operation up

          3  and leaving our community. So, it's higher for us in

          4  that sense.

          5                 MR. GRANNUM: Certainly I agree with

          6  everything you said, but I would like to add and I

          7  would direct this to Chairman White as well, in

          8  particular I would say, one of the things that you

          9  don't talk about in your proposed legislation is any

         10  new incentives for businesses in these zones, and it

         11  strikes me that that's clearly an area that

         12  incentives for the formation of new businesses, for

         13  the reduction of cost in doing business in the

         14  zones, you know, a variety of things that would

         15  stimulate economic activity, because there are

         16  additional barriers in some of these areas to doing

         17  business. There are higher costs, there may be

         18  higher cost-related to security. There may be a

         19  higher cost related to job training. You know, for

         20  example, there is no incentive, real incentive for

         21  retail establishments.

         22                 So, I think there may be some work

         23  that could be done that's clearly within the focus

         24  of the Council looking at various kinds of

         25  activities or incentives that can be used to
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          2  stimulate, you know, economic development, and make

          3  it easier to open businesses or stay in businesses

          4  in the community development zone areas.

          5                 MR. BRYANT: I think it's very

          6  important for the Council to take this action and to

          7  codify this program in legislation.

          8                 As you've said, Councilman,

          9  priorities come and go based on resources, based on

         10  will or whims, and if the Council has put this

         11  program in legislative form, the communities can

         12  rely on it, hold Council accountable for it as well

         13  as try and hold the Mayor's Office accountable to

         14  addressing this issue over the longer term.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Well, I would like

         16  to address the question related to incentives.

         17  Surely legislators come and go, but when you take a

         18  look at the investment, those individuals or

         19  institutions that invest in the communities look in

         20  terms of ten and 20 and 30 years of investment and

         21  return because they're building businesses.

         22                 So, I agree with you that one of the

         23  things that would be, and I've seen it happen in

         24  Jamaica, is in areas where there was high poverty,

         25  where there was crime, where there was inferior
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          2  stores, et cetera, as we began to encourage

          3  businesses to come in, be it federal, State, City or

          4  a combination of all three or two or one, and the

          5  private sector, what usually happens is they get the

          6  incentive through tax abatements and stuff like that

          7  and what runs parallel to that is an increase in

          8  police protection, an increase of arrests and make

          9  that environment less attractive to crime and the

         10  crime rate drops and the insurance rates drop. But

         11  that's the long term kind of investment and what

         12  Chairman Vann is saying with that long-term

         13  investment, there has to be long-term commitment

         14  running parallel with the human aspect of that

         15  investment, of that we have a value on the human

         16  factor and someone testified earlier, and I

         17  mispronounced her name, but you know, where the

         18  private sector comes in and one of the incentives

         19  that we can take a look at is when you're talking

         20  about private investors and putting the City to the

         21  side right now, and you're talking about them

         22  getting tax breaks and we're talking about child

         23  care, and while people were speaking what was going

         24  through my mind is, maybe we should have a concerted

         25  effort to move parallel with Chairman Vann's
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          2  initiative by saying maybe we'll give something to

          3  those businesses that are for child care on site.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Where a mother can

          6  bring her child on site and they provide day care on

          7  site, when there is lunchtime the mother or the

          8  father gets to have lunch with their child, it makes

          9  for a better employee, it makes better in terms of

         10  productivity. It helps all around, and it gives a

         11  commitment to that business to thrive based on those

         12  benefits, the same way we're looking at health

         13  benefits from companies. That portion should be

         14  looked at to be added, you know, when we take a look

         15  at going into the poverty pockets, so-to-speak, to

         16  help people, because somebody gets a job now, they

         17  make whatever they make and now somebody takes care

         18  of their kids and whatever they make they got to

         19  give 50 percent of that to the person that is taking

         20  care of their child. It doesn't make sense.

         21                 So, you're right, we have to begin to

         22  think outside the box as it relates to what those

         23  economic incentives are as it relates to private

         24  industry going into the various communities, and we

         25  have to look also perhaps for the City agencies that
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          2  go into an area, and one of the problems I can

          3  foresee with that is that they are bounded by

          4  negotiations and union contracts and that's

          5  something that the unions would have to make as part

          6  of their bargaining, collective bargaining practices

          7  to see what they could do, and perhaps maybe we

          8  could be sort of like support those efforts, but we

          9  cannot control contract negotiations and bargaining

         10  on the part of unions with the City.

         11                 But, you know, some of these things

         12  we have right here. We talk about incentives, it's

         13  an incentive for a person to get up and go to work

         14  because they can take their child with them. There's

         15  an incentive in terms of changing the whole attitude

         16  of the child that you're raising, you know, not to

         17  want to be in poverty, because, you know, they see

         18  the value of work through their parent going to work

         19  and they're going to work with them, but they're in

         20  day care, and that's a crucial point in a child's

         21  life, you know, day care and what they do and what

         22  their involvements are.

         23                 So, that's just my response to that.

         24  Maybe it's idealistic but you know, I think all

         25  things are possible that you can conceive. I mean,
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          2  the Chair you sit in, nobody thought about that, you

          3  know, way back with age you sat on a rock, someone

          4  said, well, let's get a chair, and they would

          5  probably want to crucify them, until they start

          6  making chairs, someone starts sitting down in them,

          7  somebody say, well, let's put some cushion on them

          8  before they get a little too hard.

          9                 So, I agree with Chairman Vann, this

         10  can be done, and the will to achieve it is what we

         11  have to keep promoting and pushing. We cannot ever

         12  concede to, well, we can't do this, or we can just

         13  do a little bit of it. We can do it. Poverty is

         14  economics. Poverty is a business. If people are not

         15  getting, then somebody is receiving from those

         16  people because they're not getting. So, what we have

         17  to find out is what that is, and substitute

         18  something else other than poverty, so, you know, we

         19  can move together, and you don't have to make your

         20  benefits out of someone being in poverty. It could

         21  be something else. But certainly everybody should be

         22  given a fair opportunity to learn, to earn and to

         23  live a life abundantly, as they see fit, whatever

         24  that level is.

         25                 So, that's what I have to say in
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          2  terms of we're open to incentives, but genuine

          3  incentives, not just for the sake of somebody making

          4  more money. What's the human factor?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: One of the things I

          6  would ask your staff to forgive me for doing this,

          7  because it just came to me as you were speaking, is

          8  that typically we think of incentives in terms of

          9  play space incentives, or that is if a corporation

         10  will stay at a certain place or open up a business

         11  in a certain place.

         12                 I'm not sure, I think there may be

         13  one or two incentives that are actually tied to

         14  people themselves. In other words, in the area of

         15  workforce, for example, an incentive where an

         16  employer would save some money or get a credit for

         17  hiring people from these specific zones might be

         18  something that's worth examining to the extent that

         19  it currently doesn't exist.

         20                 MR. BRYANT: To give an example of

         21  that, we now give attached vouchers for housing to

         22  people to enable them to move from place to place.

         23  We attach vouchers to workers to be able to move

         24  from company-to-company, that might help.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. I just want
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          2  you to know that's well received.

          3                 Council Member Yassky.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          5  Chair White, Chair Vann, and thank you for holding

          6  this hearing. It's nothing more important for those

          7  of us in government to try and attack this, it seems

          8  like never-ending, but always crisis problem of

          9  poverty in the City.

         10                 I just had a couple of questions for

         11  the panel, sparked in part by what, I think it was

         12  what you said, Colvin, maybe ten minutes ago, or a

         13  little while ago about job creation -- well, whoever

         14  it was that asked about the incentives, job creation

         15  businesses. What thoughts do you have about what

         16  business we can do? Because I believe we need

         17  schools, we need new child care, there's a lot we

         18  need, but if we can create decent-paying jobs, that

         19  is the single most important thing we can do to

         20  alleviate the poverty problem, obviously. People are

         21  earning a decent wage, then they can support

         22  themselves. That's part of the reason, by the way,

         23  when I see things like turning, it's just on my mind

         24  because I got a phone call about it today, you know,

         25  EDC is again talking about shutting down the
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          2  Brooklyn port, container port, which is, you know,

          3  significant number of good paying jobs, in favor of

          4  presumably housing development. And we have to hang

          5  onto the jobs we have. But my question for you is,

          6  what do you think that we, as a City government, can

          7  do to make it easier for businesses to be started

          8  and expanded and in neighborhoods that are the most

          9  afflicted by poverty?

         10                 MR. GRANNUM: Well, I do think that

         11  the cost, you know, some work needs to be done on

         12  cost of areas where there are high concentrations of

         13  poverty.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: When you say

         15  costs, you mean rents, you mean insurance, you mean

         16  taxes?

         17                 MR. GRANNUM: Well, I'll tell you, we

         18  have two new Anchor tenants at Restoration Plaza.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: How is

         20  Applebees doing, by the way?

         21                 MR. GRANNUM: Applebees is doing okay.

         22  You know, we're in dialogue, and I will just say

         23  they were quite disappointed. They actually thought

         24  there would be more incentives for them in coming

         25  into Central Brooklyn. You know, I think they had
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          2  this notion that the kinds of incentives that are

          3  available in the empowerment zones would be

          4  available to them.

          5                 Now, some of the costs that are

          6  higher, you know, we say to them you need to hire

          7  local workforce, you need to really, you know, don't

          8  come into this community and don't hire folks who --

          9  when you come into a community, you make sure you

         10  hire folks from the community. Well, there's a high

         11  rate of turnover. It just happens to be that a lot

         12  of our young people, you know, these are jobs that

         13  typically go to young people, they don't necessarily

         14  have a work ethic and there's a significant rate of

         15  turnover above their normal rate.

         16                 There is no question that things like

         17  insurance are higher. And security is higher. It

         18  just happens that our crime is down in the City. We

         19  all know that there are still pockets of the City

         20  where crime may be down, but not as well as it ought

         21  to be to ensure safety. These are just realities,

         22  and these are realities that the business has had to

         23  deal with.

         24                 Now, I don't know all of the things

         25  that all of the items that would make the cost of
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          2  operation higher.

          3                 I will tell you this: I mean,

          4  financing costs are more higher too, because the

          5  lenders see businesses as somewhat riskier. And I

          6  think it would be worthwhile, and I think maybe SBS

          7  is doing that, I don't know. But I know we've had

          8  conversations with them about the availability of

          9  additional incentives for businesses that are

         10  thinking about coming into Bedford Stuyvesant. And

         11  they said that the incentives are very limited, and

         12  you know, I think, for example, we were talking

         13  about in the Center for Retail Businesses. I think a

         14  lot of the centers are tailored towards

         15  manufacturing, because there's a sense in the

         16  community that there's a need for more

         17  manufacturing, and in many parts of this City you

         18  don't need an incentive for more retail.

         19                 That's not necessarily the case for

         20  Bedford Stuyvesant.

         21                 So, I think it would be good to sit

         22  with some of these local business people. To your

         23  point, we also know that the engine for creating

         24  jobs is small businesses. You know, we always think

         25  about the Chase Manhattans of the world and, you
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          2  know, Hewlett Packards, you know. But in New York

          3  City it's the small business owner that creates the

          4  bulk of the jobs.

          5                 And, so, I think we just, you know,

          6  we need a more focused approach to understanding

          7  exactly what they need and I'm sorry I'm not the one

          8  that can give you the answer today.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I know. If

         10  there was an answer, I suppose, you know, we would

         11  be doing it.

         12                 But I mean, for what it's worth, I'm

         13  the Chair now of the Small Business Committee and

         14  we've had a number of sessions with Chambers of

         15  Commerce, with small business owners brought in to

         16  talk about exactly this. You know, they'll all bring

         17  up the topic of taxes, because, you know, everything

         18  you identify does make it a higher, more costly to

         19  do business here than in Yonkers. It is actually

         20  true. And, now, the truth of the City government,

         21  rather than try and compensate for that actually

         22  adds to it with a corporate tax and so-called

         23  unincorporated business tax, small business tax,

         24  that's higher than, you know, anything else in the

         25  State. And, now, look, on the other hand, we sit
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          2  here budget time and we want to make sure we got the

          3  money for child care and for everything that we want

          4  the City to be doing. So, to talk about cutting

          5  taxes doesn't really, you know, advance exalts

          6  (phonetic), there is a tension I think between that

          7  and I think it's something worth thinking about, and

          8  if you have any feedback, you know my number.

          9                 Here is my last question on job

         10  training, workforce development. Because one issue

         11  is getting businesses, bring Applebees into Bed

         12  Stuy. Another issue is making sure that folks who

         13  live in Bed Stuy are able to get jobs whether in Bed

         14  Stuy or in Metrotech, or in, you know, downtown on

         15  Wall Street. And I'm curious, because, again, as far

         16  as this Committee, we have done a bunch of work on

         17  job training, workforce development, but then you

         18  hear kind of typically from people in that world.

         19  You're kind of looking at that world and what it

         20  does, but not so much in it -- what's your sense of

         21  how well we're doing on job training, on workforce

         22  development and what could we be doing better?

         23                 MR. ALEXANDER: Okay, I'll take a

         24  crack at that. The biggest dilemma that we're having

         25  across the Board, I'll make a general statement, is

                                                            126

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  the lack of will, commitment, from the private

          3  corporations in the private sector, very honestly.

          4  The analogy was given to me by an ex-offender last

          5  night at a community meeting. He said it was great

          6  when I was incarcerated and I gave the cheap labor

          7  to the corporations, but as soon as I came out after

          8  serving my time, now I need to be employed, I can't

          9  go back to them because I'm too costly. And, so,

         10  that was the analogy he gave.

         11                 The problem that we're having

         12  basically is this: We need to have a number of

         13  placements that are committed, entry level, groups

         14  such as RDRC that has workforce development can do

         15  the training, can get them ready, the placement is

         16  the key. And it's not all about retail, it's not

         17  about fastfood. It's about also looking at different

         18  venues where they do need the entry level, and we

         19  think there can be more done in in that avenue.

         20                 MR. GRANNUM: Yes, we're working in

         21  workforce -- you know, we kind of think now, I like

         22  to say, I don't know what the Councilman feels about

         23  this, I'd like to say that in Bedford Stuyvesant I'm

         24  really not worried anymore about whether it's going

         25  to be an attractive place to live. Really the
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          2  question is how do we shape it so it looks

          3  attractive to everybody, but it's on a roll. It's

          4  the people and whether they can afford to live there

          5  and all that stuff.

          6                 So, I think that Kevin is right on

          7  the score that what I see at SBS is a new commitment

          8  to engage in private sector employers, but I don't

          9  necessarily believe, and I think that, you know, I'm

         10  on a Workforce Investment Board as well, and they

         11  will admit that they don't necessarily have an

         12  argument that resonates deeply with everyone they

         13  approach.

         14                 The private sector is not yet

         15  convinced that the workforce system that SBS has put

         16  in place will deliver the kind of workers they want

         17  and will save money for them in terms of hiring and

         18  all that stuff, so we got some ways to go, and I

         19  don't know there's a role that the Council can play

         20  with respect to engaging the private sector and

         21  saying it's important for you to work with these

         22  communities and hire these employees and

         23  blah-blah-blah.

         24                 The second thing that we know is

         25  something that is referred to or alluded to in the
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          2  proposed bill, which is that people who are in the

          3  workforce system need a variety of support to stay

          4  in the system, whether it's child care, whether it's

          5  housing. You know, there has to be a comprehensive

          6  approach to that person.

          7                 And there are some programmatic

          8  initiatives coming out of Robinhood and some other

          9  places that bring a comprehensive supports of

         10  baskets to people to help them try to stay in the

         11  system because they get crises in their lives that

         12  well intentioned as they are, they make them fall

         13  out of the system.

         14                 So, supports for workers are another

         15  important thing that we should look at to make sure

         16  that people who want to be in a system stay in the

         17  system.

         18                 Another thing, and this is alluded to

         19  in the Commission's report, is just a focus on what

         20  the working poor needs. When you really think about,

         21  you know, sometimes we just think about the poor in

         22  a very homogenous way, but there are nuances and you

         23  could have two people who were working in New York

         24  City and they're poor, and that's a crime in my

         25  view.

                                                            129

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2                 Now, I'm not going to run out and say

          3  raise the minimum wage because some of the people of

          4  my neighborhood who own shops would try to hunt me

          5  down. But on the other hand, there are probably some

          6  things that we can do that the public sector can do

          7  to make life to reward people who are trying to make

          8  it. And sometimes when we've got kids in school and

          9  two people are security guards, and we probably know

         10  lots of people like that, it's very difficult to

         11  make it.

         12                 And, so, that's one of the things why

         13  I think that, you know, this targeting piece that

         14  we're talking about here, especially the outer

         15  schools, disconnected youth and the working poor,

         16  were areas that are rich. You know, we don't know

         17  yet how deep we can go in terms of finding out what

         18  they need and what will help them. And I think as we

         19  progress in a targeted way there's a lot that we're

         20  going to learn that's not readily apparent.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         22  much. Thank you, Chair White and Chair Vann.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I would just like

         24  to respond to the issue about the working poor.

         25                 You know, we speak about poverty, we
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          2  speak about the working poor, and I see a shrinking

          3  middle class, and on some level the working poor

          4  used to be the middle class, and something has to be

          5  done. I mean that were affordable to me is like I

          6  can't put my hand on it, even affordable homes and

          7  affordable apartments. Well, the prices have went

          8  up. You used to be able to afford it and now you

          9  can't afford it, and the two income households that

         10  used to get you over and let you do the things you

         11  need to do for the family, no longer can do that.

         12                 So, yes, we have to take a look at,

         13  and the Committee is taking a look at, aside from

         14  the poverty and the poor, the middle class, where

         15  are they, okay? We cannot afford to lose the middle

         16  class in this City and we have to do whatever we

         17  have to do in terms of legislatively to ensure that

         18  the middle class has a home in New York City as we

         19  approach this boon that we're in.

         20                 The housing stock now is going down.

         21  I'm watching it on the news and they hit every place

         22  but New York. You know, there's for sale signs every

         23  place but New York, I mean they just don't want to

         24  come out with those numbers yet.

         25                 The gas, if you watch the prices, all
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          2  of a sudden now they're down to 2.49, and there was

          3  a time when it went up to 2.49 I was holding my

          4  head, then it went to three something, now it's down

          5  to 2.49, I'm shewww (sic), things went down. It's

          6  that economic gain that you really have to take a

          7  look at and you can only look at it, at least I only

          8  look at it from the purchase and power of a dollar,

          9  all right? What does that get you, okay? That's the

         10  only thing that can't fool you. The pricing can come

         11  down, go up, but what is that dollar worth, and what

         12  is that dollar worth against the euro and the yen

         13  and things like that, because we're really dealing

         14  with the global economy, and I think most of us in

         15  various communities are only looking at the economic

         16  vitality of our communities from the dollar and

         17  cents standpoint of view, when we are actually

         18  dealing with the global economy with our dollar. And

         19  that's why individuals who come from let's say

         20  Europe, the European common market dealing with the

         21  euro, can come here and buy things because our

         22  dollar is less that in many cases, or the yen, less

         23  than in many cases.

         24                 So, I mean, there's a lot of things

         25  to look at because we're exporting more of our jobs,
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          2  and we have to deal with the issue of the cheap

          3  labor that's brought in by illegal immigrants. So,

          4  when you take a look at the total picture, all

          5  right? You know, you have to come up with a plan

          6  because, you know, it's not as easy as it would

          7  appear to be because we're multi-cultural, diverse

          8  City now. In the Borough of Queens there's 187

          9  different languages spoken. So, it's there, things

         10  are moving. I guess as an African American I just

         11  don't see where we are in the scheme of things. I

         12  don't see the purchase and power. I see people are

         13  assimilating in the City of New York, economically,

         14  educationally, healthwise, all the things that came

         15  out that Chairman Vann wants to address with the

         16  legislation, it's just that we're not there, and I

         17  really took offense that the comment that the

         18  President of Mexico made concerning

         19  African-Americans, that we don't want jobs. And if

         20  we take it a little further, no, we do not want jobs

         21  that we are educated enough to know we should have

         22  fringe benefits like health care and child care,

         23  that cheap labor is not going to ask for. They will

         24  just accept that $10 a day or $20 a day and people

         25  are being exploited, okay, which is another form of
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          2  poverty and pitting people who are in poverty

          3  against immigrants who are willing to work for

          4  nothing. I mean, that's a different kind of a war

          5  that we're working with, but we will work with it.

          6  And it's just the idea that, you know, we have to

          7  find that common denominator, socio-economically, to

          8  where we can work together and move parallel in a

          9  system that's going to benefit everyone.

         10                 I don't fault anybody that is

         11  fortunate enough to have a billion or millions to

         12  expect their return on their investment. That's the

         13  right thing to do in business. But from the union

         14  standpoint of view, fair days work for fair days

         15  pay. All right? I mean, if we follow those concepts,

         16  everybody would make out, at least a lot of people

         17  would make out.

         18                 So, in dealing with the poverty

         19  question, and the war on poverty by Johnson, and I'm

         20  glad Chairman Vann introduced this resolution here,

         21  is we got to put some teeth in it, and we got to get

         22  answers to those questions from the legal aspect.

         23  Once we get the legal aspect we can then take a look

         24  at two things, if it's not legal, then we can pass

         25  legislation to make it legal, all right? If it
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          2  require other kinds of things that's going to give

          3  some security to us moving forward and addressing

          4  this issue, no matter who the Mayor is, then we have

          5  to do some legislation that would do that. We might

          6  have to create an agency, whatever.

          7                 But I'm glad to be a part of this and

          8  I want to thank the Chairperson, Chairman Vann, for

          9  working so diligently on this for years and years

         10  and years, and as he put it, and I understand it

         11  fairly well, is that we don't have to be here to end

         12  poverty, but the mere fact that he set a cornerstone

         13  and put things in the motion to end it, and 100

         14  years from now it ends, you know, he set the stone.

         15  And that's very important. Because a lot of people,

         16  they want to start something and see the end result,

         17  which is natural. But you know what? It takes

         18  someone with vision to start something and say you

         19  know what? I did my part and I did my investment.

         20  And in my City where I sat, where I was able to

         21  introduce something that would benefit humanity. So

         22  that much I want to thank you for, and I'll turn it

         23  over to you to close, making whatever comments you

         24  make.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: This has been a

                                                            135

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  very good discussion, and I'm getting to know my

          3  colleague, I didn't know he was so deep and

          4  philosophical. I'm glad to meet you, though,

          5  brother.

          6                 MR. GRANNUM: I guess it's the panel

          7  that brought it out.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VANN: Yes. This is, got

          9  this show on the road, man. Well, if the Mayor can

         10  listen in to some of this stuff... And so, it's been

         11  a very good discussion, very helpful, and I

         12  appreciate all of your critiques and your

         13  recommendations and insights. It's been helpful, I'm

         14  sure staff here has been taking everything in and

         15  we're going to hone our act here a little bit.

         16                 So, let me also, because I wonder, in

         17  a profit-driven system, which capitalism is, and in

         18  a democratic form of government, short of

         19  revolution, can we really get that mix to address

         20  these fundamental problems of poverty? And so that's

         21  what we're wrestling with, how do we get this

         22  government, in this capitalist society address the

         23  needs of working people. That's our charges.

         24                 So, we may not want to solve that

         25  whole problem. What we're trying to do is, and we
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          2  set an example here in this City to make sure that

          3  we can come close to doing that. And so, I don't

          4  want an answer, that's rhetorical. But come back

          5  with the answer by our action, right?

          6                 Thank you very much. Appreciate your

          7  testimony, gentlemen.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Meeting is

          9  adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 3:59 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 28th day of September 2006.
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